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<> To become a professionally managed, fully integrated,
customer focused prime quality Tin Plate producer,
offering value added quality tin plate products to
our customers within and outside Pakistan meeting
International Standard.

<> To continuously provide quality tin plate to our
valuable customers at affordable price, build strong
and permanent relation with domestic and
international patrons under the umbrella of quality,
reliability and affordability, focused to our customers
and always put our customers on first priority.

Our mission is going to be the course chart and radar of our ship
so that every time we move we check our parameters to comply
and follow our mission and do not deviate from it.
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CORPORATE STRATEGY

To enable STPL a modest tin plate company with global
acceptability, to attain new heights of success with the help
of Al-mighty Allah. We plan to further expand our business
network and penetrate in global tin industry through joint
venture with different neighboring countries and contribute
to generate robust foreign reserve for our country. Our
objective is to successfully deliver quality products and
services to our customers and enlighten the awareness of

tin plate for food packaging industry in the country.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR. TARIQ RAFI, CHAIRMAN

Mr. Tariq Rafi serves as a Director of the Company and has been a member of
the Board since the inception of Siddigsons Tinplate Limited. He also holds
directorships on the Boards of several prominent institutions, including MCB Bank
Limited, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC), and Siddigsons
Limited. A distinguished business leader, Mr. Rafi has been conferred with the
Sitara-e-Imtiaz by the Government of Pakistan in recognition of his services to
the business community. He is also the recipient of the Young Businessmen Leader
Award from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) and was honoured
with the Best Businessman Award for the year 1999 by the Federation of Pakistan
Chambers of Commerce & Industry (FPCCI). Mr. Rafi's long-standing leadership
and strategic guidance have played an integral role in the Company's growth and
direction since its inception.

MR NAEEM UL HASNAIN MIRZA

Mr. Naeem ul Hasnain has been serving on the Board of Directors of the Company
since October 2013 and currently holds the office of Chief Executive Officer. He
is a Certified Director from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
Mr. Hasnain holds a Bachelor's degree in Engineering from NED University of
Engineering and Technology. He commenced his professional career with Siddigsons
Tinplate Limited in 1999 and, over the years, has held various senior management
roles across critical operational areas of the Company. His strategic leadership
and deep understanding of the tinplate industry continue to contribute significantly
to the Company's growth and operational excellence.

MR. MUNIR QURESHI, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Munir Qureshi holds a graduate degree in engineering and a graduate degree
in public administration from Harvard University. He is a certified director from
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. Following a distinguished 35-
year career in the civil service, he retired in 2014 and joined the Board of Siddigsons
Tinplate Limited in 2015. He held senior positions in the customs service, including
as Member (Customs) at the Federal Board of Revenue, and later served as
Secretary, Ministry of Commerce. His service was formally commended on World
Customs Day in 2015 for his contributions as Secretary of Commerce. Mr. Qureshi
brings to the board deep expertise in governance, trade, and customs enforcement.
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MR IBRAHIM SHAMSI
Mr. Ibrahim Shamsi is a seasoned enterpreneur with extensive experience in
modern management and operational leadership. He holds an MBA from the
Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS) and has served on the Board
of Siddigsons Tinplate Limited since 1997. He is the Chief Executive Officer of
Joyland Ltd., Lahore, and also serves as Chairman of Cotton Web Ltd. Mr. Shamsi
is a Director on the Board of Adamijee Insurance Company Limited, MCB Islamic
Bank and Siddigsons Limited and several other prominent companies. His diverse
leadership experience across various sectors equips him with a well-rounded
perspective that greatly benefits the Board.

MS. ALIA SAJJAD
Ms. Alia Sajjad joined the Board of Siddigsons Tinplate Limited as a non-executive
director in 2018. She holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration and
is a Certified Director from the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants
of Pakistan. She concurrently serves as Director of lImestors Academy. With
strong entrepreneurial spirit and proven leadership across corporate and education

sectors, she contributes valuable insight to our Board.

MR. ABDUL WAHAB
Mr. Abdul Wahab is a business graduate with a Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from the Institute of Business Management (loBM). He is also a Certified
Director from the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan.
Mr. Wahab joined the Board of Siddigsons Tinplate Limited in 2018 as an
Independent Director. He is a seasoned professional with extensive experience
in the FMCG and textile sectors. His core competencies include marketing, sales,
and project management. With a dynamic and result-oriented leadership style,
he brings valuable commercial insight and strategic depth to the Board.

MR. MUHAMMAD YOUSUF ADIL

Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Adil is the founder of Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants
- a correspondent firm of Deloitte in Pakistan. He joined the Siddigsons Tin Plate
Board in 2023 as an Independent Director. He brings over 40 years of experience
in assurance, taxation, and advisory services, alongside more than a decade of
independent consultancy. Mr. Adil has advised on major transactions involving
mergers, acquisitions, public listings, and corporate restructuring across sectors
such as banking, oil & gas, and manufacturing. Known for his deep expertise in
taxation and public offerings, he has supported the growth of prominent business
groups including Sapphire, Nishat, and Sitara. Mr. Adil is also recognized for his
longstanding engagement with regulatory bodies and his contribution to the
development of Pakistan's textile and corporate sectors.
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that Annual General Meeting of M/s. Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited will be held on
Friday, July 25, 2025 at 12:00 p.m. at Ocean Mall & Tower, 4th Floor, G-3, Block-9, Scheme-5, Clifton, Karachi
to transact the following business:

AGENDA
Ordinary Business

I.  To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 29, 2023.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June
30, 2024 together with Directors' report and Auditor's report thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year 2024-2025 and fix their remuneration. The retiring
auditors, M/s. Muniff Ziauddin, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-appointment.

Special Business

4. To obtain approval of the shareholders of the Company, as per the requirements of SRO 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21, 2023, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for transmission
of the annual balance sheet, profit and loss account, auditor's report and directors' report, etc. (annual
audited financial statements or the annual report) to the members/shareholders through QR-enabled code
and web-link, instead of transmitting the same through CD/DVD/USB, and to pass the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the shareholders of STPL do hereby consent and authorise the Company for transmission
of annual audited financial statements or the annual report, including but not limited to the annual balance sheet,
profit and loss account, auditor's report and directors' report, etc. to its shareholders through QR-enabled code
and web-link, instead of transmitting the same through CD/DVD/USB, subject to the requirements of SECP's
SRO 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023"

Other Business

5. To transact any other business with the permission of Chair.
By order of the Bpard

>

Karachi Maham Khalid
Dated: July 04, 2025 Company Secretary
NOTES:

BOOK CLOSURE

The shares transfer books of the Company will remain close from 19-07-2025 to 25-07-2025 (both days
inclusive). Transfers received at the Share Registrar of the Company, MM/s. THK Associates (Pvt) Limited, Plot
No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A., Phase VII, Karachi, at the close of business on July 18, 2025 will
be considered in time to be eligible for attending and voting at the meeting.

o
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ATTENDANCE

A member entitled to attend and vote at a Meeting is entitled to appoint another member as a proxy to attend,
speak and vote on his/her behalf. A corporation, being a member, may appoint as its proxy any of its officials
or any other person, whether a member of the company or otherwise. An instrument of proxy and a Power
of Attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or notarized copy of such Power of Attorney,
must be valid and deposited at the Share Registrar of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of
the Meeting.

Those shareholders whose shares are deposited with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)
are requested to bring their original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) along with participant's ID
number and their account/sub-account numbers in CDC to facilitate identification at the time of Annual General
Meeting. In case of Proxy, attested copies of proxy's CNIC or passport, Account and Participation's .D numbers
must be deposited along with the Form of Proxy with Share Registrar of the Company as per paragraph No. |
above. In case of Proxy for corporate members, the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of Attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the meeting (unless it has been provided earlier to the
Share Registrar). Attested copies of CNIC of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC at the time of meeting.

For CNIC / IBAN & Zakat

Members are requested to provide their International Banking Account Number (IBAN) together with a copy
of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to update our records. In case of non-submission, all future
dividend payments may be withheld. Members are requested to submit declaration (CZ-50) as per Zakat &
Ushr Ordinance 1980 for zakat exemption and also requested to notify the change in their address, if any, to
Share Registrar of the Company.

E-DIVIDEND

As per Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, in case of a Public listed company, any dividend payable in cash
shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.
Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are requested to update their bank account details in the Central
Depository System through respective participants. In case of physical shares, to provide bank account details
to our Share Registrar, M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd. E-Dividend mandate form is enclosed.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS & BONUS SHARES

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares or did not collect their physical
shares, are advised to contact our Share Registrar M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd. to collect/enquire about their
unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any.

CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO THE BOOK ENTRY FORM:

The SECP through its letter No. CSD/ED/Misc/2016- 639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised listed companies
to adhere to provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 by replacing physical shares issued by them
into book entry form.

The shareholders of Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited having physical folios / share certificates are requested to
convert their shares from physical form into book-entry form as soon as possible. The shareholders may contact
their Broker, CDC Participant or CDC Investor Account Service Provider for assistance in opening a CDS
Account and subsequent conversion of the physical shares into book-entry form. It would facilitate the
shareholders in many ways including safe custody of shares, avoidance of formalities required for the issuance
of duplicate shares, etc. For further information and assistance, the shareholders may contact our Share Registrar,

M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd.
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CIRCULATION OF NOTICE OF MEETING & ANNUAL ACCOUNTS THROUGH EMAIL

In compliance with Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 and SRO 452(1)/2025 dated March 17, 2025
issued by SECP, the Annual Report of the Company and the Notice of Annual General Meeting shall be circulated
via email to those shareholders whose email addresses are present in the records/database of the CDC and
Share Registrar. Shareholders are encouraged to send/update their email address with the Company's Share
Registrar, M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd., at Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A., Phase VII, Karachi.
However, if a shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the same shall
be provided free of cost within seven days of receipt of such request.

E-VOTING AND POSTAL BALLOT

Members can exercise their right to vote through e-voting or postal ballot, subject to meeting the requirements
of subject to meeting the requirements of Companies Act, 2017, S.R.O. 451(1)/2025 issued by the SECP, and
applicable clauses of the Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of the Companies (E-Voting) Regulations,
2016 or Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 (as the case may be).

PROHIBITION ON GRANT OF GIFT

In compliance with Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SRO 452(1)/2025 dated March 17, 2025 issued
by SECP, it is hereby notified that no gifts in any form or manner, shall be distributed to shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting.

VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY

Shareholders interested in attending the meeting through video conferencing facility are requested to email the
following information with the subject "Registration for Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited AGM" along with valid copy
of both sides of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to secretariat@siddigsonstinplate.com and
sfc@thk.com.pk Video link and login credentials will be shared with only those members whose emails, containing
all the required particulars, are received at least 48 hours before the time of AGM.

If sent through courier, the demand for video-link facility shall be received by the Share Registrar at the address
given hereinabove at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the meeting on the Standard Form provided in
the annual report and also available on the company's website.

Registration to attend the Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing Facility

Folio No. / CDC Investors A/c No./ Sub-A/c No.:

Name of Shareholder:

Cell Phone Number:

Email Address:

No. of Shares held at the |st day of the Book Closure to establish the right to attend AGM:

vuhwn —

Shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM at the following
email addresses: secretariat@siddigsonstinplate.com and sfc@thk.com.pk

o

I, Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited /I | 09

A Siddigsons Group Company



ANNUAL REPORT 2024

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017

Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 requires that a statement of material facts regarding special business
items is annexed to the notice of the general meeting.

Pursuant to SECP's SRO 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, listed companies may circulate their annual audited
financial statements (including balance sheet, profit and loss account, auditor's and directors' reports) through
a QR code and web link, subject to certain conditions. To avail this facility, companies are required to obtain
shareholders' approval in a general meeting. Accordingly, the Company seeks members' consent to transmit
the annual audited financial statements via QR code and web link, while complying with SECP's conditions,
including:

*  Issuing notices in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017;
*  Sending reports via email where addresses are available; and
*  Providing printed copies free of cost within one week upon request, as per PSX's standard format.

None of the Directors have any interest in this special business, except in their capacity as directors or
shareholders.

o
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CODE OF CONDUCT

Honesty, integrity and strong commitment to high standards of ethical, moral and lawful conducts are among
the most important traditions. This dedication is critical to meet our commitment to the shareholders, customers,
suppliers and employees.

Ethical behaviour is an individual responsibility. Behaviour reflecting- high ethical standards are expected of all
executives and employees regardless of their position or location.

Our businesses and customs vary, and each individual who works for the Company is unique, however, we have
certain standards and responsibilities to share wherever we do

Code of Conduct
Management Commitment to Code of Conduct
. We, the management of the enterprise are committed to the following principles:

- ethical management practices

- recognition of merits

- empowerment of employees

- respect of employees, suppliers, clients, and shareholders
- respect of basic human rights

- avoidance of conflicts of interest

Managerial Responsibilities

2. Managers are expected to set the highest standards of ethical business conduct and are encouraged to
discuss the ethical and legal implications of business decisions. It is their responsibility to create and sustain
work environment in which employees, consultants and contract workers know that ethical and legal
behaviour is expected of them.

3. Managers must be diligent in looking for indications that unethical or illegal conduct has occurred, and take
appropriate action on regular basis to address any situation that seem to be in conflict with the law or the
Code.

Employee Commitment to Code of Conduct

4. All employees should have the opportunity to contribute, learn, grow and advance based on merit. Ethical
principles which employees must follow include:

- Honesty

- Fulfilment of their promises
- Integrity and loyalty

- Feeling of belongingness

Code, Policies and Applicable Laws

5. Itis management's responsibility to ensure compliance with the Code, Company's policies and all prevailing
applicable laws in conducting business within the country and around the globe.

o
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Confidentiality

6. We safeguard confidential information by keeping it secure, avoiding discussion in public areas and limiting
access to those who have to know for execution of their duties.

7.  Information that is not generally disclosed and is helpful to the company must be protected.

Conflict of Interest

8.  Actions must be based on sound business judgement, and not motivated by personal interest or gain. Any situation that
creates or appears to create a conflict of interest between personal interests and the interests of the Company will
be avoided.

Protecting Company Assets
9.  All employees are entrusted with numerous company assets, and have a special responsibility to protect them.
0. Company's resources should 'be used only to conduct company's business or for purposes authorized by management.

I'l.  Unauthorized copying of software, tapes; books and other legally protected work, is a misuse of asset and may expose
the company to legal liability.

[2.  Any act by Company's employee that involves theft, fraud, embezzlement, or misappropriation of any property/asset
is prohibited.

Favours and Benefits

I3. Employees should not misuse their position to influence vendors, subordinates or any other person to provide any
undue favour or benefits, whether financial or otherwise, to themselves or others.

I4. Employees shall not provide or offer to provide any favours or benefits to government departments or engage in any
activities, which could influence the business decisions and violate the law. Offering or providing bribes or kickbacks
is prohibited in all circumstances.

I5. Gifts and entertainment may be used in developing business relationships and not be lavish or in excess of the generally
accepted business practices of industry.

Competitive Information

6. The Company will always obtain information regarding customers; suppliers and competitors legally and ethically. Theft
of proprietary information, inducing disclosures by a competitor's past or present employees is prohibited.

Business Conduct
Customers
. The Company ensure that its products and services meet customer requirements and product specification.

2. Labelling of products will be complete, fair and honest. Only claims, which can be substantiated and fulfilled, are made
by the company, its employees and its agent.

o
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Shareholders

3. We ensure shareholders' participation and respect their rights to information while protecting the interests of other
stakeholders.

4. The Company respects the right of shareholders to submit proposals for vote and to ask questions at the meeting.

5. Shareholders are informed about significant and material violations of corporate policies (including codes
of conduct) and any decisions by tribunals or courts which are unfavourable of the company.

Employees

6.  The Company values its employees and their contributions towards its operations.

7. The Company pays adequate wages to enable employees, to meet the basic needs for themselves and their families.

8.  The Company will not make any discrimination in its policies of employment and remuneration, whether by race,
age, gender, disability or religion.

9.  Each worker should be employed on the basis of their ability to do the job, rather than on the basis of personal
characteristics or beliefs.

10. Training, development, promotion and advancement opportunities within the Company are available to all
employees.

[I. The Company recognizes the need for supporting and/or providing the essential social infrastructure and
community services to its workers.

[2. All those who work within and on the Company's premises, whether permanent, temporary or contractual, shall

receive equal protection especially in provision of equipment and information concerning their health and safety
at work:

Suppliers / Subcontractors

3.

The Company accepts its responsibility to use its purchasing power to encourage good corporate organizations
among its suppliers.

The Company is careful in its negotiations and contractual arrangements with other companies. This includes
fair dealing, prompt payment and the avoidance of corrupt practices, bribes and questionable payment.

The Company seeks out supplies that meet the same quality standards on environmental and social grounds as
the Company sets for its own products.

The Company will not enter into contracts with suppliers who use any form of forced or bonded labour.
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Accuracy of Business Records

I7. Employees throughout the Company are responsible for recording any kinds of information properly, honestly
and accurately.

I8. All financial books, records and accounts accurately reflect transactions and events, and conform both to generally
accepted accounting principles and to Company's system of internal controls.

Working Hours
19. Working hours in accordance with local standards are followed at all sites and offices of the Company.
Wages and Benefits

20. We ensure that wages and social benefits are in accordance with laws in force or prevailing wage practice in the
country.

Health, Safety and Environment

21. The Company is committed to provide a safe and healthy work environment to its employees. Each facility is
required to have a safety program in place that includes appropriate training programs. The Company will meet
applicable laws and government regulations as well as Company's own standards.

22. Each employee is responsible for observing the safety and health rules and practices that apply to his or her job.
Employees are also responsible for taking precautions necessary to protect themselves & and their co-workers,

including reporting accidents, injuries, and unsafe practices or conditions.

Appropriate and timely action will be taken to correct known unsafe conditions.

Child Labour

23. Company discourages for employment of Child Labour.

o
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SIX YEAR AT A GLANCE - RATIO ANALYSIS

For the year ended 30th June 2024

DESCRIPTION | 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Rupees in "000"

TRADING RESULTS
Net Turnover 4,075,585 | 4,393,767 | 4,722,753 | 5,847,855 | 3,556,448 | 3,408,744
Gross Profit (55,470) 399,997 619,257 803,366 181,076 334,807
Profit / (Loss) before tax (1,997,294) 50,948 257,909 402,061 26,947 128,925
Profit / (Loss) after tax (2,058,499) 3,083 201,264 322,156 (23,144) 86,891
Dividend - - - - - -
BALANCE SHEET
Share Capital 2,292,788 | 2,292,788 | 2,292,788 | 2,292,788 | 2,292,788 | 2,292,788
Unappropriated profit (1,431,727) 626,772 623,689 422,425 100,269 123,412
Total Assets 4438521 | 6,106,388 | 6,542,623 | 5,114,644 | 5232,449 | 4,557,393
INVESTORS INFORMATION
Gross Profit in percent of sales -1.36 9.10 [3.11 13.74 5.09 9.82
Earnings/(Loss) Per Share (8.98) 0.01 0.88 1.4 -0.10 0.39
Profit / (Loss) before tax in

percent of sales (49.01) I.16 5.46 6.88 0.76 3.78
Profit / (Loss) after tax in

percent of sales (50.51) 0.07 4.26 5.51 -0.65 2.55
Inventory Turnover (days) 52 12 96.83 77.62 149.15 121.96
Debtor turnover (days) 10 2| 32.70 31.02 55.74 60.93
Break-up value Per share (Rs) 5.1 14.0 14.04 13.16 [1.75 [1.85
Market value Per share (Rs) 5.93 5.93 10.58 19.14 9.22 9.69
Dividend per share (Rs) - - - - - -
Dividend yield ratio (%) - - - - - -
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) - - - - - -
Return on equity (%) (177.06) 0.10 6.25 10.68 -0.86 3.20
Current Ratio 0.34 0.80 1.07 [.14 [.11 1.53
Interest cover (times) -2.35 1.24 2.53 4.23 1.30 1.73
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

(On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is my privilege to present to you the Annual Report 2024 and the review\
of performance of the Board of Directors of your Company.

The FY 2023-24 has been marked by significant challenges, faced by your company with resilience and strategic
foresight. Various factors such as high level of discount rate, devaluation of PKR, highest ever inflation, high price
of imported material and unprecedentedly high interest payment on account of CRM loans have added to the
baggage of loss your company was already carrying due to closure of CRM project. Throughout most of the
year, the business environment remained uncertain, driven by political and economic instability and averse
government policies. One such policy challenge was the continued misuse of sales tax exemptions granted to
the FATA/PATA regions, which has now been extended into FY 2024-25. Moreover, the unconventional use of
Galvalume sheets - primarily intended for the construction industry - in food packaging created additional market
distortions impacting your Company. The situation was further exacerbated by the unrestricted import of
secondary tinplate at significantly lower prices, which severely affected the Company's ability to compete and
maintain market share.

Despite these challenges, your Company made every possible effort to navigate the difficult landscape and
successfully mitigated potential adverse impacts to the extent possible through prudent management and strategic
decision-making.

As a result of the factors outlined above, the Company reported a loss before tax of Rs. 1.997 billion for the
year, which includes a provision of Rs. 821 million related to the CISRI claim. In addition to the ongoing impact
of the discontinued CRM project, the primary drivers of this loss were the high cost of imported raw materials,
low capacity utilization, which led to an increase in manufacturing cost per metric ton.

Your company remained compliant with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations
2019 and the Companies Act, 2017 during FY 2023-24.

An annual evaluation of the Board was conducted to assess its overall performance and effectiveness. The Board
of Directors consistently upheld the principles of transparency, accountability, and integrity, ensuring the application
of best governance practices throughout the year.

Robust frameworks for risk management and internal controls were established and actively maintained, reflecting
our continued commitment to regulatory compliance, ethical business conduct, and the reinforcement of
stakeholder trust. During the fiscal year 2023-2024, the Board convened four meetings, while the Audit Committee
and Human Resources Committee held four and one meetings, respectively. These meetings ensured ongoing
oversight of the Company's operations and the performance of the Board its sub-committees.

| would like to place on record my sincere appreciation for the Board's dedicated performance in fulfilling their
responsibilities with diligence and professionalism, and for their valuable guidance to the executive management
on all key decisions concerning the affairs of your Company.

In conclusion, | extend heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, employees, and business partners for their

continued support and commitment. Together, we shall focus on advancing our strategic goals and building a
resilient, ethical, and forward-looking organization.

. _

Tariq'Rafi
Chairman

\Karachi, June 30, 2025 Yy,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

4 )

Dear shareholders,

The Directors of your company are pleased to present the annual report together with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended June 30, 2024.

Global Business Scenario

During FY 2023-24, global steel prices remained under pressure, with no significant appreciation, largely due
to ongoing geopolitical tensions and economic uncertainties. GDP growth in major steel-consuming economies
in the Asia-Pacific region, such as China and India, remained sluggish, further dampening demand.

Meanwhile, the influx of steel products from China into the domestic market continued to rise, posing significant
challenges for local industry players and intensifying competition. On the global front, policy shifts introduced
by the new U.S. administration, particularly changes in import tariffs on steel products, have created new business
opportunities for non-traditional exporters seeking to enter or expand their presence in the U.S. market.

Pakistan's Economic Scenario

During FY 2023-24, Pakistan's economy showed signs of modest recovery amid persistent structural challenges.
The State Bank of Pakistan gradually reduced the policy interest rate from 22% to 20.5% as inflationary pressures
began to ease. The exchange rate between the Pakistani Rupee (PKR) and the US Dollar remained relatively
stable, providing some relief to businesses dependent on imports and foreign transactions.

The banking environment remained challenging for businesses, particularly in terms of accessing trade financing.
Tight liquidity conditions and cautious lending policies further constrained working capital financing and expansion
plans.

On the external front, imports declined due to weak domestic demand, currency management policies, and
tighter import controls. This supported a slight improvement in the current account balance. Despite these
efforts, macroeconomic stability remained fragile, and private sector investment was subdued due to the high
cost of borrowing and ongoing policy uncertainty.

Overall, while economic indicators hinted at gradual stabilization, sustained recovery will depend on continued
fiscal discipline, structural reforms, and a more favorable global environment.

Business Overview and Financial Highlights

----PKR-----
2024 2023 2022
Net Sales 4,074,584,855 4,393,766,968 4,722,752,530
Gross Margin (55,470,034) 399,997,200 619,257,179
Profit before taxation (1,997,294,165) 50,947,909 257,909,255
Profit / Loss after taxation (2,058,499,135) 3,083,060 201,264,055
Earnings/(Losses) per share (8.98) 0.0l 0.88

. J
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The overall factors as elaborated in preceeding paras, coupled with price fluctuation in international commodity
market, has adversely impacted the business activity of the company. The net sales of PKR 4.026 million for the
year under review was 7% lower than the last year. The gross loss for the year was Rs. 55 million as compared
to Rs. 400 million of gross profit during last year, thereby recording a fall of | 14%.

During FY 2023-24, the Company's operational performance was significantly impacted by both external and
internal challenges. Capacity utilization dropped by 27%, with annual production totalling 8,350 metric tons,
compared to | 1,386 metric tons in the previous year.

This decline in production was primarily driven by several factors. The domestic demand for tinplate weakened
considerably over the year, largely due to its high cost, which led end-users to shift to alternative packaging
materials such as plastic pouches and PET bottles. Moreover, multiple market factors created a highly unfavorable
sales environment:

I.  Increased usage of Galvalume sheets, which are imported at 0% duty and are being used in food packaging
- an unintended and non-compliant application. This continues to distort the competitive landscape. Notably,
Galvalume imports surged by 57%, rising from 103,922 metric tonnes in FY 2022-23 to 163,319 metric
tonnes in FY 2023-24.

2. Continued imports of tinplate into FATA/PATA regions under tax-exempt status, resulting in significantly
lower-priced alternatives in the market. These imports not only bypass normal duties and taxes but are
also increasingly being diverted into other parts of the country. Tinplate imports into FATA/PATA increased
by approximately 26%, from 8,532 metric tonnes in FY 2022-23 to 10,744 metric tonnes in FY 2023-24.

3.  Dumping of Chinese tinplate at substantially lower prices, making it difficult for local manufacturers to
maintain market share.

4. Widespread usage of secondary-grade tinplate and plastic materials in the food packaging industry, further
eroding demand for prime-quality tinplate.

Furthermore, the Company experienced major operational disruptions, namely two major production halts due
to labor issues, which disrupted the entire quarterly output and resulted in delayed customer deliveries.
Additionally, there were delays in raw material supply during January and February 2024, affecting production
continuity and planning.

Despite identifying opportunities, the Company was unable to compete due to severe price competition from
Chinese exporters, who offered products at dumped rates, making our pricing unviable in those markets.

Sales

The sales revenue of the company has decreased by 7%. This is a constituent of a positive price variance of
I 1% and a negative volume variance of 7% which is due to the factors explained above.

Production
Current year's production was 27% lower than the last year. The Company operated at a capacity utilization

of only 6.95% (2023: 9%), with production significantly reduced due to factors such as delayed supply of raw
materials, and labor unrest.
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Operational overview

The EBITDA, excluding non-recurring items, stood at Rs. (463.947) million, as compared to Rs. 240.067 million
in FY 2022-23. This deterioration in operational margins was largely due to underutilization of capacity, price
pressures from dumped and untaxed imports, and operational disruptions.

Despite these difficulties, the Company continued to focus on cost efficiency. Amid inflation reaching 25.9%,
administrative expenses (excluding provisions) have increased by 23%, but the management's stringent cost
control measures led to a 29% reduction in distribution costs (excluding export-related costs).

However, finance costs continued to weigh heavily on profitability, increasing by 177%%. The primary contributors
were elevated discount rates, with KIBOR remaining at historically high levels for most of the year, and interest
on borrowings related to the discontinued CRM project, including Rs. 500 million in long-term loans and around
Rs. I billion in short-term loans. Out of the total finance cost of Rs. 596 million, a major portion was directly
attributable to CRM-related borrowing.

It is worth noting that the finance cost began to ease in the latter part of the year due to debt repayments and
a gradual reduction in interest rates.

The Company reported a loss after tax of Rs. 2,058.499 million, compared to a profit of Rs. 3.083 million in the
previous year. The loss before tax stood at Rs. 1,997.294 million, primarily driven by lower production, high
cost of imported raw material, market distortions due to unfair competition, high interest cost and a substantial
one-time provision of Rs. 821 million related to the CISRI claim.

Earnings Per Share

The earnings per share have been recorded at Rs. (8.98), as compared to profit per share of 0.01 in the previous
year.

Payments to National Exchequer

The Company has made payments of Rs. 853 million to the National Exchequer on account of income tax, sales
tax, custom duties and other levies.

Credit Rating

During the year an interim evaluation was carried out and the PACRA has maintained the credit rating of the
Company as A. (Single A minus) for long term and A2 (Single A two) for short term with "stable" outlook

Risk Management

The Company has established a comprehensive risk management framework aimed at identifying, assessing, and
mitigating risks across all areas of its operations, including strategic decision-making, operational activities,
compliance, and financial reporting. The Board of Directors actively reviews and monitors these risks to ensure
that they are managed effectively and in alignment with the Company's objectives.

Adequate internal controls have been designed and implemented across all levels of the organization through
well-defined Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) and policy guidelines.

o
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In line with its commitment to strengthening risk oversight, the Company has recently introduced a new Risk
Management Policy. This policy provides a structured approach for the identification, evaluation, and response
to potential risks and enhances the overall governance and resilience of the organization.

Human Resources

The Company operates a well-equipped Human Resources department at Group level which operates in line
with the strategic directions of the Board and its Human Resource Committee. All employee related matters
such as remuneration, allowances, leaves, performance appraisals, hiring and terminations are dealt through
them.

Gender Pay Gap Statement

Under SECP Circular 10 of 2024, following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2024:
Mean Gender Pay gap: (-102.79%)

Median Gender Pay Gap: (-208-89%)

The above percentages reflect the gender pay gap of relevant male versus female employees across the
organization.

Health, Safety & Environment (HSE)

The management of your Company takes the HSE measures seriously and ensures the strict implementation
of all safety measures. During the year under review no major incident was reported. The management ensures
compliance with environmental standards.

Chairman's Review

The directors of the Board endorse the contents of the Chairman's review dealing with the overall performance
of the company and the performance/effectiveness of the Board.

Provident Fund

The estimated fair value on investment of Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited - Staff Provident Fund base don internal
records as on June 30, 2024 was Rs. 104 million (2023: Rs. | |3 million).

Future Outlook

Looking ahead, the operating environment appears to be stabilizing. The raw material shortages that significantly
impacted production during the previous fiscal year have largely been resolved, with inventory levels now aligned
to support our current share in the domestic market. Additionally, the quality of raw materials sourced locally
has improved, now meeting international standards, which enables us to meet customer expectations more
effectively.
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While domestic demand for tinplate continues to remain subdued, primarily due to cost pressures and the
increasing shift toward alternative packaging materials, the Company is aggressively pursuing export opportunities,
particularly in the Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) region, the United States, and Europe. A notable shift in
global trade dynamics - especially the imposition of heavy anti-dumping duties (ADD) on Chinese tinplate by
several countries - has opened new avenues for compliant producers like STPL.

In this regard, we have successfully secured export orders and have already dispatched trial shipments to key
markets. Additionally, our senior management actively participated in the CANNEX FILLEX Global Can making
Exhibition in the USA, enabling direct engagement with international buyers and trading companies. In Europe,
tinplate trading companies have also expressed interest in a tolling business model, under which they will supply
Tin Mill Black Plate (TMBP) to be processed by STPL.

Another positive development is the gradual decline in domestic interest rates, which is expected to reduce our
finance cost burden, especially given our current high gearing (debt-to-equity) structure.
Furthermore, the levy of 10% sales tax on tinplate imports into the FATA/PATA regions is expected to reduce
the pricing advantage previously enjoyed by importers in these areas, creating a more equitable environment
for STPL's domestic sales.

In summary, while challenges persist, the outlook for FY 2024-25 is cautiously optimistic, driven by stable raw
material supply, growing export momentum, potential regulatory relief, and declining interest rates. The Company
remains committed to restoring profitability, improving efficiency, and strengthening its position both locally and
globally.

Auditors

The present auditors M/s. Muniff Ziauddin & Co., Chartered Accountants retires and being eligible have offered
themselves for the reappointment. With the endorsement of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors have
recommended their reappointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2025, at a
remuneration to be mutually agreed.

Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

The requirement of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the Pakistan Stock Exchange in their Listing
Regulations, relevant for the year ended June 30, 2024, have been complied with after adopting by the Company.
A separate statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance has been signed by the Chief
Executive Officer and is included in this report.

Statement of Code of Conduct

The Board has adopted the statement of Code of Conduct. All employees have been informed and are required
to observe these rules of conduct in relation to customers, suppliers and regulations.

Corporate and financial reporting frame work

*  The financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up by the management in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017. These Statements present fairly Company's state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

*  Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.
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*  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

*  The International Accounting Standards/International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan,
have been followed in the preparation of financial statements.

*  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
*  There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

*  There has been no departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the listing
regulations.

e Significant diversion from last year's operating results has been disclosed in the Directors' Report
Composition of the Board

In line with the requirements of the CCG, the Company encourages representation of Independent and Non-
Executive Directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board. A formal Director's Remuneration policy approved
by the Board is in place. The policy includes transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Companies Act, 2017 and CCG Regulations, 2019.

Total number of Directors:

0] Male: 6
(ii) Female: I

The composition of the Board of Directors is as follows:
Category Names

0] Independent Directors Mr. Abdul Wahab
Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Adil

(i)  Non-Executive Directors Mr. Tariq Rafi
Mr. Ibrahim Shamsi
Ms. Alia Sajjad (Female Director)

(iii)  Executive Directors Mr. Munir Qureshi
Mr. Naeem-ul Hasnain Mirza

Remuneration of Directors

In compliance with Section 227 (2) (la) of the Companies Act, 2017, the detailed remuneration of the directors
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company is disclosed in Note 37.
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Committees of the Board

Audit Committee Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Adil (Chairman)
Mr. Ibrahim Shamsi (Member)
Mrs. Alia Sajjad (Member)
Mr. Abdul Wahab (Member)
Mr. Maham Khalid (Secretary)

HR Committee Mr. Abdul Wahab (Chairman)
Mrs. Alia Sajjad (Member)
Mr. Muhammad Naeem-ul-Hasnain Mirza (Member)
Mr. Maham Khalid (Secretary)

Technical Committee Mr. Tariq Rafi (Chairman)
Mr. Munir Qureshi (Member)
Mr. Muhammad Naeem-ul-Hasnain Mirza (Member)

Board of Directors' Meetings

During the year under report, the Board of Directors met four (4) times. The numbers of meetings attended
by each director during the year is shown below:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Tariq Rafi

Mr. Ibrahim Shamsi

Ms. Aliya Sajjad

Mr. Ashraf Mahmood Wathra
Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Adil
Mr. Munir Qureshi

Mr. Naeem ul Hasnain Mirza
Mr. Abdul Wahab

WhAhAN—IADNDIN

Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not attend the Board meetings.
Audit Committee and Internal Control System

The management of your Company believes in good corporate governance, implemented through a well-defined
and efficiently applied system of check and balance, and the provision of transparent, accurate and timely financial
information. The board of directors has established a sound system of internal control within the Company
which is effectively implemented at all levels.

The Audit Committee comprises of four (4) members, two independent and two non-executive directors
including the chairman of the Committee. The Committee has its terms of reference which were determined
by the Board of Directors in accordance with the guidelines provided in the Listing Regulations.

Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year under review the Company is continuing to support the society in the areas of education, clean
water and health care in Winder- Baluchistan.
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Pattern of shareholding

The total number of Company's shareholders as at June 30, 2024 were 5342. The pattern of shareholding as
at June 30, 2024 along-with necessary disclosures as required under the Code of Corporate Governance is
annexed with this report.

Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors expresses its sincere gratitude to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,
esteemed Shareholders, Business Partners, valued Customers, Government Authorities, Autonomous Bodies,

and Financial Institutions for their continued support and cooperation.

The Board also wishes to place on record its deep appreciation for the dedicated efforts and unwavering
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|
N\ 7 ) _
/@ ' /&
Muhammad Naeem-ul-Hasnain Mirza Muhammad Tariq Rafi
Chief Executive Officer Director

Karachi, June 30, 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

Name of company: SIDDIQSONS TIN PLATE LIMITED
Year ended ¢ 30JUNE 2024

The company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 in the following manner:

The total number of directors during the year 2024 are 7 as per the following:

Category Number of Directors
a Male Director* 6
b Female Director I

*including the President & CEO who is an Executive Director

2.

38

The composition of the Board as at June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Category Name
Independent Directors Mr. Abdul Wahab
Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Adil
Non-Executive Director Mr. Tariq Rafi
Mr. Ibrahim Shamsi
Ms. Alia Sajjad
Executive Directors Mr. Munir Qureshi

Mr. Naeem-ul Husnain Mirza

Female Director Ms. Alia Sajjad

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed
companies, including SIDDIQSONS TINPLATE LIMITED

The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has approved a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which
they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017
and these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

o
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The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and these Regulations.

The Board has not arranged any training program for its directors during the year. Out of total seven
directors, four directors have obtained certification under DTP while two directors meet the criteria
of exemption, having 14 years of education and |5 years of experience on the board of a listed
company. Furthermore, the last director is Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Adil, who has joined the Board
in December 2023. As a financial expert with over 40 years of experience in audit, compliance, finance
and being the founder of Yousuf Adil Charters Accountants, the company believes that Mr. Adil is
not required to undergo the DTP. The Board is committed to compliance with corporate governance
regulations and maintains all efforts for fulfillment of the Director's Training Program.

Subsequent to the year-end, the Board has approved the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) and the Company Secretary (CS), including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment, and has complied with the relevant requirements of the Regulations.

The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer before approval of the Board.

The Board formulated the following committees comprising of the members in its first board meeting
held on February 28, 2024 after completion of election process, which was held on December 30,
2024:

Audit Committee

Name Designation
Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Adil Chairman
Mr. Ibrahim Shamsi Member

Mr. Abdul Wahab Member

Ms. Alia Sajjad Member

Ms. Maham Khalid Secretary

HR& Remuneration Committee

Mr. Abdul Wahab Chairman
Ms. Alia Sajjad Member
Mr. Naeem-ul-Hasnain Mirza Member
Ms. Maham Khalid Secretary

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

Meetings Frequency

Audit Committee Four quarterly meeting were held during the year ended June 30, 2024

HR & Remuneration
Committee One meeting was held during the year ended June 30, 2024

o
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18.

The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function/managed by suitably qualified and experienced
personnel who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. Mr Faran Ur Rehman
Hashmi appointed as Head Internal Audit with effect from |13 November 2023;

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and are registered with the Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guide lines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that the partners
of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the CEO, CFO, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

I8.1 As per regulations 6, it is mandatory that each listed company shall have at least two or one third

members of the Board, whichever is higher, as independent directors. With regard to compliance
with Regulation 6 pertaining to fraction contained in one-third number and not rounded up as one.
Management believes that two Independent Directors are sufficient to represent minority shareholders.
As per Regulations 6 rounding up was not mandatory and the Regulators had placed .Regulation 6
rounding up under the ‘comply or explain' approach which enabled the Board to explain its reasoning.

|9 Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than Regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36
is as follows.
S.No. Non-Mandatory Requirement Reg. No. Explanation

. The Board may constitute a separate committee, 29 (1) | Currently, the Board has not constituted a separate
designated as the nomination committee, of such Nomination Committee and the functions are being
number and class of directors, as it may deem performed by the Board.
appropriate in its circumstances.

2. The Board may constitute the risk management 30 (1) | Currently, the Board has not constituted a separate
committee, of such number and class of directors, Risk Management Committee and the functions
as it may deem appropriate in its circumstances, are being performed by the Board.
to carry out a review of effectiveness of risk
management procedures and present a report to
the Board.

3. The Board is responsible for governance and [I0A (1) (3)| The Board will ensure that the Company has
oversight of sustainability risks and opportunities 4) addressed sustainability-related risk and
and takes appropriate measures to address it. opportunities. Also, it will ensure that Company's
Further, the Board ensures that the Company's sustainability and DE&I related strategies are
sustainability and DE&I related strategies are periodically reviewed and monitored in future.
periodically reviewed and monitored.

4. The Board may establish a dedicated sustainability | 10A (5) | Currently, the Board has not constituted a separate
committee or assign additional responsibilities to Sustainability Committee and the functions will be
an existing Board committee. performed by the Board Audit Committee.

ad Tariq Rafi Muhammad Naeem-ul-Hasnain Mirza

Muh
Chairman CEO
Date: 24 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SIDDIQSONS TIN PLATE LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of SIDDIQSONS TIN
PLATE LIMITED (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required
to consider whether the Board of Director's statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to
form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures
and risks.

The Regulations requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval
of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected
in the note/paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Reg. | Explanation

29(1) | the Board has not constituted a separate Nomination Committee currently and the functions are being
performed by the Board.

30(1) | Currently, the Board has not constituted a separate Risk Management Committee and the functions are
being performed by the Board.

I0A | The Board will ensure that the Company has addressed sustainability-related risk and
(1)(3)| opportunities. Also, it will ensure that Company's sustainability and DE&I related strategies
4 are periodically reviewed and monitored in future.

I0A | Currently, the Board has not constituted a separate Sustainability Committee and the functions will
(5) be performed by the Board Audit Committee.

/‘4% ?ﬂzf-

CHARTERED/ACCOUNTANTS

KARACHI
DATE: June, 27, 2025
UDIN: CR202410130g0zE6nkgj

Independent Other Offices:
Member 41 Islamabad & Lahore
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SIDDIQSONS TIN PLATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited (the Company), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
and we state that except for the matter as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, we have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the statement
of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2024 and of the loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

. As we were appointed after year end, we did not observe the counting of physical inventory as at the
year ended June 30, 2024. As our alternative means, we have reviewed the working papers of previous
auditors and the stock count sheets for the year end June 30, 2024.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1.2 to the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred significant
losses during the year, experienced operational disruptions, and faced adverse litigation outcomes. These events
led to a working capital deficit and raised doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
While management has taken various remedial steps including resumption of operations, cost reduction measures,
asset disposals, and group-level support, material uncertainty remains. These conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists which may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Emphasis of Matter

i. We draw attention to Note 25.2 to the financial statements, which describes a contingency relating
to an ongoing legal case, the same is more fully explained in the aforesaid note.

ii. We draw attention to note 22 to the financial statements whereof an markup-free loan was obtained
by the Company from its associated undertaking. The Company has not recorded markup on this loan
on the plea as explained in the aforesaid note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described on the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we
have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

S.No Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

I. | Revenue from contracts with customers | Our audit procedures included the following:

(Refer note 4.10 & 26 to the annexed | o
financial statements)

Assessed the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the key internal controls
involved in revenue recognition.

Understood and evaluated the accounting policy
with respect to revenue recognition.
Performed testing of revenue transactions on a
sample basis with underlying documentation
including dispatch documents and sales invoices.
Tested on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the
reporting date with underlying documentation
to assess whether revenue was recognised in
the correct period.

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in
the financial statements related to revenue.

The principal activity of the Company is the | ®
manufacture and sale of tin plates, cans and
other related steel products. Revenue from | @
sale of goods is recognised as or when
performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring control of promised goods to | e
customer, and control is transferred at a point
in time either upon shipment or delivery of
goods to customer.

We considered revenue recognition as a key | @
audit matter due to revenue being one of the
key performance indicators of the Company.

Contingencies In response to this matter, our audit procedures
included:

The Company is subject to material litigations
involving different courts pertaining to taxation
and other matters, which requires management
to make assessment and judgements with
respect to likelihood and impact of such
litigations. Management have engaged
independent legal counsel on these matters.

Discussing legal cases with the legal department to
understand the management's view point and
obtaining and reviewing the litigation documents in
order to assess the facts and circumstances.

Obtaining independent opinion of legal advisors
dealing with such cases in the form confirmations.
We also evaluated the legal cases in line with the

The accounting for, and disclosure of, requirements of IAS 37: Provisions, contingent

contingencies is complex and is a matter of
most significance in our audit because of the
judgements required to determine the level
of certainty on these matters.

liabilities and contingent assets.

The disclosures of legal exposures and provisions
were assessed for completeness and accuracy.
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, but does not include in the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal controls as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors'
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);
b) except for the possible effects of the matter as disclosed in Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, the

statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with
the books of account and returns;

) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company's business; and
d) No zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Other Matter

The annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023, were audited by another
firm of Chartered Accountants who vide their report dated October 10, 2023, expressed an unmodified opinion
thereon.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Sohail Saleem.
/‘4% A

Chartered’/Accountants

Karachi

Date: June 27, 2025
UDIN: AR202410130gvé6al M4Ru
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30, 2024

ASSETS Note
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 5
Long term deposits

Long term advance 6
Deferred taxation 19
CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 7
Stock-in-trade 8
Trade debts 9
Advance income tax 10
Loans and advances |1
Trade deposits and prepayments 12
Other financial assets 13
Other receivables 14
Sales tax adjustable

Cash and bank balances 15
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 16
Share premium

(Accumulated loss) / unappropriated profit

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term finances 17
Lease liabilities 18
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 20
Contract liabilities

Due to director 21
Due to associate 22
Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 23
Short-term borrowings 24
Current portion of long term finances 17
Current portion of lease liabilities 18

Current portion of government grant
Unclaimed dividend

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 25

Restated Restated
2024 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees Rupees
3,368,557,319 3,710,304,520  3,072,984,904
10,066,221 10,056,221 10,056,221
- 408,400,347 408,400,347
- 9,604,195 -
3,378,623,540 4,138,365,283  3,491,441,472
7,748,065 18,989,099 20,564,692
281,427,670 885,561,765 1,566,752,074
38,163,245 186,526,133 324,328,947
221,151,176 246,092,941 166,311,218
5,951,499 34,079,760 92,998,038
40,696,022 48,674,221 54,193,194
264,564,407 255,523,740 219,564,407
10,841,059 9,198,412 -
145,473,817 258,185,536 399,616,471
43,880,734 25,191,464 206,852,074
1,059,897,694 1,968,023,071 3,051,181,115
4,438,521,234 6,106,388,354  6,542,622,587
2,292,787,700 2,292,787,700  2,292,787,700
301,517,286 301,517,286 301,517,286
(1,431,727,445) 626,771,690 623,688,630
[,162,577,541 3,221,076,676  3,217,993,616
142,200,968 406,922,722 462,859,212
8,727,268 11,995,113 3,586,398
150,928,236 418,917,835 466,445,610
1,019,149,745 548,104,100 324,806,321
30,021,205 33,778,382 6,832,838
352,000,000 194,000,000 -
53,236,586 279,281,995 -
106,805,43 | 82,738,647 72,338,725
1,490,019,036 1,199,450,760| | 2,407,635,368
68,720,629 124,620,817 43,513,383
3,267,901 2,460,441 569,641
- - 528,384
1,794,924 1,958,701 1,958,701
3,125,015,457 2,466,393,843 2,858,183,361
4,438,521,234 6,106,388,353  6,542,622,587

The annexed notes from | to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

S

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

/ DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended June 30, 2024

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
Revenue from contract with customers - net 26 4,075,584,855 4,393,766,968
Cost of goods sold 27 (4,131,054,889) (3,993,769,768)
Gross (loss) / profit (55,470,034) 399,997,200
Distribution cost 28 (19,142,370) (27,160,020)
Administrative expenses 29 (137,442,941) (111,359,203)
Impairment loss 52.1 &

5.2.3 (306,131,883) -
Provision for expected credit losses 9.1 (68,249,940) (56,643,324)
Provision against contingency 25.2 (820,968,027) -
Other expenses 30 (47,454,275) (3,459,317)
Finance cost 31 (596,185,739) (215,217,034)
Other income 32 53,751,044 64,789,607
(Loss)/ profit before levies and taxation (1,997,294,165) 50,947,909
Levies 33 (51,600,775) (57,469,044)
Loss before taxation (2,048,894,940) (6,521,135)
Taxation 34 (9,604,195) 9,604,195
(Loss) / profit for the year for the year (2,058,499, 135) 3,083,060
Other comprehensive income = -
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (2,058,499, 135) 3,083,060
(Loss)/ earnings per share - Basic and diluted 35 (8.98) 0.0l

The annexed notes from | to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

_#z P
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/ DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2024

A.

48

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/ profit before levies and taxation
Adjustments for non cash and other items:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Finance cost 31
Workers' welfare fund 30
Provision for expected credit loss 9.1
Reversal / provision for slow moving stores and spares 7.1
Provision for advance against letter of credits' fee and expenses | 1.1
Advances written off 30
Profit on bank deposits and TDR 32
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 32
Advance tax written off 10.1
Liability written back 32
Unrealized exchange loss / (gain) on foreign currency account 30
Unrealized exchange loss / (gain) on foreign trade recievables 30
Impairment loss on capital work in progress 52,1 &

523
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital
Changes in working capital
Decrease / (increase) in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and prepayments
Sales tax adjustable
Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax and levies paid 10.1
Interest / markup paid
Tax refund received during the year 10.1

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities

o

2023
2024 Restated
Rupees Rupees
(1,997,294,165) 50,947,909
37,127,901 38,691,511
596,185,739 215,217,034
15,253,831 -
68,249,940 56,643,324
(8,108,172) 2,573,257
15,747,984 -
2,093,905 70,285
(43,225,050) (34,059,009)
(772,870) (2,080,122)
10,001,897 -
(1,634,327) -
107,567 (731,183)
4,249,091 (26,445,228)
306,131,883 -
(995,884,846) 300,827,778
19,349,206 (997,664)
604,134,095 681,190,309
75,863,857 107,604,718
10,286,372 58,847,993
7,978,199 5,518,973
112,711,719 141,430,935
830,323,448 993,595,264
457,426,141 223,297,779
(3,757,177) 26,945,544
288,107,566  1,544,666,365
(82,539,832) (137,250,767
(572,118,955)  (204,817,112)
45,878,925 -
(320,672,296)  1,202,598,486
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A Siddigsons Group Company




ANNUAL REPORT 2024

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2024

_#. S

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

/ DIRECTOR

o

Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited
A Siddigsons Group Company

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment (25,353,436) (1,714,365)
Additions to capital work in progress - (651,672,440)
Adjustment against margin released from bank 522 23,673,937 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 939,786 2,290,000
Addition to long term deposits (10,000) -
Investment of term deposit certificates - net (9,040,667) (35,959,333)
Profit on bank deposits and TDR received 41,582,403 24,860,597
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 440,192,370 (662,195,541)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term finances obtained - 75,767,907
Repayment of long-term finances (320,621,943) (61,287,797)
Lease rentals paid (2,460,384) (2,372,235)
Loan obtained from director 700,000,000 255,000,000
Loan repaid to director (542,000,000) (61,000,000)
Loan obtained from associate 9,032,758 583,481,995
Loan repaid to associate (235,078,167) (304,200,000)
Unclaimed dividend paid (163,777) -
Short-term borrowings - net 627,486,813  (1,740,279,839)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 236,195,300 (1,254,889,969)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 355,715,374 (714,487,024)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (855,693,481) (141,937,640)
Effect of unrealized exchange (gain) / loss on foreign currency account (107,567) 731,183
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (500,085,674) (855,693,481)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 15 43,880,734 25,191,464
Short term running finance 24 (593,966,408) (930,884,945)
Term deposit certificates 50,000,000 50,000,000
(500,085,674) (855,693,481)

The annexed notes from | to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended June 30, 2024

Balance as at July 1, 2022

Total Comprehensive income
for the year ended June 30, 2023

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at June 30, 2023

Total Comprehensive loss
for the year ended June 30, 2024

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance as at June 30, 2024

Reserves
Issued, Capital Revenue
subsc.rlbed Unappropriated Total
& paid up Share profit /
capital premium (Accumulated loss)
Rupees
2,292,787,700 301,517,286 623,688,630 3,217,993,616
- - 3,083,060 3,083,060
- - 3,083,060 3,083,060
2,292,787,700 301,517,286 626,771,690 3,221,076,676
- - (2,058,499,135) (2,058,499,135)
- - (2,058,499,135) (2,058,499,135)
2,292,787,700 301,517,286  (1,431,727,445) 1,162,577,541

The annexed notes from | to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2024

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on January 29, 1996 as a public
company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 now Companies Act 2017
(the Act). The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal activity
of the Company is manufacturing and sale of tin plates, cans and other steel products.

Following are the geographical locations and addresses of all business units of the Company:
Registered Office

Ocean Tower, 27th Floor, Plot # G-3, Block # 9, Near Il Talwar, Clifton, Karachi, Sindh, Pakistan.
Manufacturing Facility:

Tin Plate plant is located at:

- Plot No. 5, Special Industrial Zone, Winder, District, Lasbella, L.I.E.D.A, Balochistan, Pakistan.
Canning plant is located at:

- Plot # 221-222, Near Jamia Millia College, Jamia Millia Road, Malir City, Karachi, Sindh, Pakistan.
Project Site:

- Tin Mill Black Plates (TMPB) project site is located at Plot No. 272 & 273 Hub City, Mouza Beroot
Peerkas Road, District Lasbella, Hub Balochistan, Pakistan.

Subsquent to the reporting year, management has decided to roll back this project.

1.2 During the year and subsequent to the year till issuance of the financial statements, the Company faced
significant operational and financial challenges, which resulted in loss after taxation amounting to Rs.
[,752.36 million and accumulated losses amounting to Rs. 2,020.26 million. During the year, Tin Plate
plant faced multiple operational shutdown due to curtailment in production. The Company even
considered closure on the Tin Plate plant due to decline in sales driven by tax exemptions in the FATA
/ PATA regions, increased use of Galvalume for food packaging as a substitute of Tin Plate and disruptions
caused by strikes from retrenched labours, which impeded the reopening of the facility. The Company
has also had its petition dismissed by High Court of Republic of Singapore (HCRS) against the award
of Singapore International Arbitration Centre (SIAC) in the dispute between the Company and New
Metallurgy Hi-Tech Group Co. Ltd. (the Supplier) as disclosed in detail in note 25.2 to the financial
statements. As at the reporting date, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs.
2,065.11 million. Furthermore, the Tin Mill Black Plates (TMBP) project was rolled back due to its
financial non-viability. These condition indicate that a material uncertinity exists which may cast significant
doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern therefore, it may be unable to realize its
asset and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

o
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In response to the challenges outlined above, the Company has taken steps to financially stabilize by
concentrating its resources on operations rather than expansion and paying off its long-term and short
term financing liabilities substantially. Subsequent to the year end, the Company has re-opened its Tin
Plate plant which was earlier considered for closure. Tin Plate plant has resumed production and the
Company is actively selling its finished goods and the Canning plant has also remained in continuous
operations. However, in the year 2025, the Company has temporarily suspended the canning operations
due to low demand caused by introduction of plastic packaging in the market.The Company has launched
a focused campaign to discourage the use of Galvalume, promoting Tin Plate as a safer and more
sustainable alternative.Subsequent to the year end, the Company has also sold certain items from capital
work in progress and the resources generated from the sale has been utilized to settle outstanding
liabilities which has resulted in a reduction in finance cost.. Furthermore, the Company believes that
the dispute with the Supplier, as disclosed in Note 25.2 to the financial statements, is likely to be resolved
through the mediation and and the amount offered in the financials has been provided for in the financials
statements. Moreover, the Company is also targeting to increase its exports in USA, European Union
and other markets.

Based on the above and keeping in view the strong position of the group, the management of the
Company is confident that above mentioned steps, along with the business projections, provide sufficient
evidence of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, therefore the financial statements
have been prepared on going concern basis.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

o
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Initial application of a standard, amendment or an interpretation to an existing standard
Amendments to accounting standards that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2024

There were certain amendments that became applicable for the Company during the year but are not

considered to be relevant or did not have any significant effect on the Company's operations and have,
therefore, not been disclosed in these financial statements except that during the year certain amendments
to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements have become applicable to the Company which require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. These amendments have been incorporated in these financial statements with the primary
impact that the material accounting policy information has been disclosed rather than the significant
accounting policies.

Standard, amendments to published accounting and reporting standards and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

There are certain new standards and certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards
that will become mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July I,
2024. However, these will not have any significant impact on the financial reporting of the Company
and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements.

Other than the aforesaid amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also
issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

- IFRS | - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

- IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ERROR

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are
significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of
accounting policies are as follows:

i. Residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment (note 4.1 and 5.1)
ii. Provision against slow moving stores and spares (note 4.3 and 7.1)

iii. Provision against slow moving stock in trade (note 4.4 and 8)

iv. Provision for impairment of trade receivables (note 4.2.7 and 9.1)

V. Classification of investments (note 4.2.1 and |3)

o
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vi. Provision for levies, current and deferred taxation (note 4.11, 4.12, 19, 33 and 34)

vii. Judgements made in contingencies (note 4.8 and 25)
Correction of error

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the management discovered that leased vehicles were erronouesly
included in the owned vehicles in the property, plant and equipments since 2022 and the corresponding
lease liabilities were reported under the long term loans. The error have been corrected by restating
each of the affected financial statement line items for prior periods. The following table summarise, the

impacts on the Company's financial statements.

Impact of correction of error

Statement of financial position As previously Adjustment  As restated
reported
Rupees

01 July 2022

Total assets 6,542,622,587 - 6,542,622,587
Property, plant and equipment - vehicles owned 25,848,012 (6,333,600) 19,514,412
Property, plant and equipment - vehicles leased - 6,333,600 6,333,600
Total liabilities 3,324,628,97| - 3,324,628,97 1
Long term loan 510,528,634 (4,156,039) 506,372,595
Lease liabilities - 4,156,039 4,156,039
Total equity 3,217,993,616 - 3,217,993,616
Unappropriated profit 623,688,630 - 623,688,630
30 June 2023

Total assets 6,106,388,354 - 6,106,388,354
Property, plant and equipment - vehicles owned 40,273,291 (24,662,955) 15,610,336
Property, plant and equipment - vehicles leased - 24,662,955 24,662,955
Total liabilities 2,885,311,678 - 2,885,311,678
Long term loan 545,999,093  (14,455,554) 531,543,539
Lease liabilities - 14,455,554 14,455,554
Total equity 3,221,076,676 - 3,221,076,676
Unappropriated profit 626,771,690 - 626,771,690
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended June 30, 2023

Administrative expense 111,359,203 - 111,359,203
Depreciation - vehicles owned 9,854,714 (4,504,845) 5,349,869
Depreciation - right of use assets - 4,504,845 4,504,845
Finance cost 215,217,034 - 215,217,034
Interest on long term loans 3,946,441 (2,929,460) 1,016,981
Interest on lease liabilities - 2,929,460 2,929,460
Profit after taxation 3,083,060 - 3,083,060
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,083,060 - 3,083,060

o
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There is no material impact of the Company's basic and diluted EPS. The related impact on the total
operating, investing and financing cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2023 has been accounted for
in the statement of cash flows accordingly.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These have been consistently applied to all the years presented, except for taxation policy as
disclosed in note 4.1 1.1.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Assets' residual values, if significant and their useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

Depreciation is charged using reducing balance method over its estimated useful life at the rates specified
in note 5.1. Depreciation is charged from the month in which asset is available for use and up to the
month preceding the month of disposal.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalised.

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment, if any, are recognised as and when incurred,
to statement of profit or loss .

Capital work in progress

These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures connected with
specific assets incurred and advances made during installation and construction period are carried under
this head. These are transferred to specific asset as and when the asset is available for its intended use.

Right-of-use assets

"Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initial direct
costs, any lease payments made at or before the commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives
received. These are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged on reducing balance basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life
of the asset. Where the ownership of the asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term
or if the cost of the asset reflects that the Company will exercise the purchase option, depreciation is
charged over the useful life of asset.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in to following three categories as per IFRS - 9:
i)  Amortised cost (AC),

ii)  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and

iii)  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

o
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On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

FVTOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to
changes in fair value recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All other financial assets are classified as FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and debt securities
not classified either as amortised cost or FVTOCI).

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL, if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Derecognition of financial assets

"The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is
calculated using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

All financial assets at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due
to changes in fair value recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

o
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For debt instruments classified as financial assets at FVTOCI, the amounts in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to income statement on derecognition of financial assets. This treatment is in
contrast to equity instruments classified as financial assets at FVTOCI, where there is no reclassification
on derecoghnition.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value,
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement principles and provision
The fair value of financial instruments is determined as follows:
Basis of valuation

- Equity securities are initially recognised at cost excluding any transaction costs which are charged
to profit or loss and other comprehensive income and subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss. The fair value of investments is determined by using closing rate of securities at day
end available on the Pakistan Stock Exchange website.

- Appreciation and diminution arising from changes in fair value of financial assets classified as fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost
of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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Impairment
Financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) on trade debts. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial assets.

The Company recoghnises lifetime ECL for trade debts. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the receivables, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecasted direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For all other financial assets, the Company recognizes lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to |2-month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. In contrast, |12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to ascertain whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the statement of profit or loss, for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is determined through
discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of

financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to off set the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Stores, spares and loose tools

These are stated at cost. Cost is determined using moving average basis less allowance for obsolete and
slow moving items, if any. Stores and spares in transit are stated at invoice value plus other charges
incurred thereon until the reporting date.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value on the following basis: -

Raw material At weighted average cost
Finished goods At average manufacturing cost
Waste At net realisable value

Cost in relation to items in transit represent invoice value and other charges incurred upto reporting
date.

Average cost signifies, in relation to finished goods, the average manufacturing cost including related
direct overheads.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes comprises of cash in hand, current and deposit accounts
held with banks. Short term running finances availed by the Company which are payable on demand
and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as part of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Employee benefit cost - Defined Contribution Plan

The Company operates an approved funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its employees
eligible for benefit. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company and its employees at
the rate of 10% per annum of the basic salary. The Company's contribution to the fund is charged to
statement of profit or loss for the year.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently at
amortised cost. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred
except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. Revenue from
operations of the Company are recognised when the goods are delivered, and thereby the performance
obligations are satisfied. Revenue consists of tin plates and canning. The Company's performance
obligations under a contract are fulfilled at the point in time when the goods are dispatched to the
customer. The control is transferred with the dispatch of goods to the customers for local sales and on
date of bill of lading for export sales. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognised at that point of
time, as the control is transferred to the customers. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria that must be met before revenue is recognised.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportionate basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the applicable effective interest rate.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted / corporate tax rate after taking
into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, as per the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using liability method for all temporary differences at the reporting date between
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes after
considering, the effective rate of tax.

Deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused
tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such
temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the enacted rate of tax that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Change in Accounting Policy
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) issued 'lAS 12 Income Taxes Application
Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes' (the guide) in May 2024 and withdrawn

the Technical Release 27 'IAS 12 - Income Taxes (Revised 2012)". The guide requires to classify certain
amounts of tax paid under minimum and final tax regime separately as a levies instead of classifying under

current tax.
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The guide has provided two approaches namely Approach A and Approach B to select any of them
considering the business model of the Company. The Company has selected Approach A considering
the fact that the entity's income is being taxed under minimum tax, according to which, designate the
amount calculated on gross amount of revenue or other basis as a levy within scope of IFRIC 21 'Levies'
or IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' and recognize it as a operating
expense. Any excess over the amount designated as levy is then recognized as current income tax
expense falling under scope of IAS 12. For calculation of deferred tax, average effective rate of tax is
required to be used.

This change has been considered as change in accounting policy and has been applied retrospectively
in these financial statements in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Change
in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. Following are the effects as a result of this change:

2023
Had there been Impact of change After incorporating
no change in in accounting effects of change
accounting policy policy in accounting
policy

Rupees
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Profit / (loss) before taxation 50,947,909 57,469,044 (6,521,135)
Levies - 57,469,044 57,469,044
Taxation 47,864,849 57,469,044 9,604,195

There has been no effect on the statement of financial position and the statement of cash flows and
earnings per share as a result of above change.In addition to above, the effective tax rate for deferred
tax has been used as per the guide and resultantly deferred tax asset has not been recorded in these
financial statements considering the limited availability of tax credits and future taxable profits of the
Company. However, deferred tax asset recorded in earlier years is reversed during current year’s
financial statements due to amount not being material to the financial statements and comparative figures
have not been restated.

Levies

The tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any
amount paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income is classified as levies in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC
21 'Levies'/ IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'.

Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Rupees using the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transaction. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting date except where forward
exchange contracts have been entered into for repayment of liabilities, in that case, the rates contracted

for are used.
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Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in net profit or loss for the year.
Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Dividend and other appropriations

The dividend is recognised as liability in the year in which it is approved. Appropriations of profit are
reflected in the statement of changes in equity in the year in which such appropriations are made.

Share capital

Share capital Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Discount on
issue of shares is separately reported in statement of changes in equity. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Segment reporting

On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable
segment; however, certain information about the Company’s products, as required by the accounting
and reporting standards, is presented in note 41 to these financial statements.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property
and equipment (i.e.,) those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement

date and do not contain a purchase.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets

Capital work in progress
Right-of-use assets

o

Note

5.1
5.2
53

2023
2024 Restated
Rupees Rupees
709,127,325 716,136,115
2,639,699,630 2,969,505,450
19,730,364 24,662,955
3,368,557,319  3,710,304,520
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5.1.1 Disposal aggregate book value is below Rs. 500,000, therefore, no disclosure has been made.

5.1.2

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Allocation of depreciation
Cost of goods sold 27.1 27,892,546 28,836,797
Administrative expenses 29 4,302,764 5,349,869

32,195,310 34,186,666

5.1.3 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

5.2

5.2.1

Location Total Area Usage of immovable property
(in acres)
Plot No. 5, Special Industrial Zone, Winder, 21 Manufacturing facility

Distt, Lasbella, L.I.E.D.A, Balochistan.

Plot No. 272 & 273 Hub City, Mouza Beroot
Peerkas Road, District Lasbella, Hub Balochistan 72 Manufacturing facility

As disclosed in note 25.2 of the financial statements, the High Court of Sindh has restrained the Company
from selling and creating any third party interest on the above properties subject to the decision of the
pending arbitral proceedings in the form of an appeal in Singapore and a suit for enforcement arising from
impugned order.

Capital work in progress

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Civil work 5.2.1 2,022,121,856 2,328,253,739
Machinery, electrical installations,
furniture and equipment 522 617,577,774 641,251,711
5.23 2,639,699,630 2,969,505,450
Civil work
Opening balance 2,328,253,739  1,988,917,030
Additions - 339,336,709
Impairment loss during the year (306,131,883) -
Closing balance 2,022,121,856 2,328,253,739

o
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5.2.2 Machinery, electrical installations, furniture 2024 2023
and equipment Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 641,251,711 328,827,311
Additions - 312,424,400
Adjustment against margin released from bank (23,673,937) -
Closing balance 617,577,774 641,251,711

5.2.3 The Company was establishing Tin Mill Black Plate (TMBP) project for manufacturing of Tin Mill Black

5.3

Plates with an annual production capacity of 200,000 MT per annum. On March 01, 2024 the Company
intimated to the exchange, in the matter of the dispute between STPL and New Metallurgy Hi-tech Group
Co Ltd (the Supplier) that an award was rendered by the Singapore International Arbitration Centre
(SIAC) in favour of the Supplier. Being dissatisfied with the award, STPL filed an applicaiton to set aside
the award before the High Court of Republic of Singapore (HCRS) which has given the decision in favour
of the Supplier subsequent to the year end. As disclosed in the note 25.2 to the financial statements,
subsequently the Company filed an application for appeal in the Supreme Court of Singapore and withdrawn
its application after entering into an agreement for mediation.

Subsequent to the year end, On October 0l, 2024 the board has decided to roll back the Tin Mill Black
Plate (TMBP) project due to challenging economic conditions, characterized by high inflation, increased
markup rates, and significant fluctuations in PKR to USD Parity.

Right-of-use assets Note Vehicles Total
Rupees

The following is a statement of right-of-use assets:

As at July 1, 2022

Cost 6,552,000 6,552,000

Accumulated depreciation (218,400) (218,400)

Net book value 6,333,600 6,333,600

Year ended June 30, 2023

Additions 22,834,200 22,834,200

Depreciation charged for the year (4,504,845) (4,504,845)

Net book value as at June 30, 2023 24,662,955 24,662,955

Year ended June 30, 2024

Depreciation charged for the year 5.3.1 (4,932,591) (4,932,591)

Net book value as at June 30, 2024 19,730,364 19,730,364

As at June 30, 2023

Cost 29,386,200 29,386,200

Accumulated depreciation (4,723,245) (4,723,245)

Net book value 24,662,955 24,662,955

As at June 30, 2024

Cost 29,386,200 29,386,200

Accumulated depreciation (9,655,836) (9,655,836)

Net book value 19,730,364 19,730,364

5.3.1 Depreciation charged for the year has been allocated in the administrative expenses.
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
6. LONG TERM ADVANCE
Advance against CRC Complex 408,400,347 408,400,347
Provision made during the year (408,400,347)
Advance against CRC Complex 6.1 - 408,400,347

6.1 This represents advance paid for import of plant and machinery to supplier through Letter of Credit
(LC). The Company has fully provided the advance amount due to the circumstances as disclosed in note
25.2.

7. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores, spares and loose tools 13,351,649 32,700,855
Less: Provision for slow-moving and obsolete items 7.1 (5,603,584) (13,711,756)
7,748,065 18,989,099
7.1 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Opening balance 13,711,756 11,138,499
(Reversal) / provision made during the year (8,108,172) 2,573,257
Closing balance 5,603,584 13,711,756
8. STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw material
in hand 72,649,743 106,619,782
in transit - 214,065,676
72,649,743 320,685,458
Finished goods - Tin Plate
Tin 203,038,319 560,425,484
Cans 1,266,608 2,433,919
Scrap 4,473,000 2,016,904
208,777,927 564,876,307
Chromite
Raw material 16,389,080 16,389,080
Finished goods 12,682,410 12,682,410
29,071,490 29,071,490
Provision for obsolete stock (29,071,490) (29,071,490)
281,427,670 885,561,765

8.1 The net realisable value (NRV) of the finished goods was lower than its cost as at year end which resulted
in the write down of Rs. 37.30 million (2023: Rs. nil).

o
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

70

TRADE DEBTS
Local - unsecured
Export - unsecured

Less: Provision for expected credit loss

Provision for expected credit loss

At July Ol
Provision made during the year
Write-off during the year

As at June 30

Trade debts are non-interest bearing and are generally settled in 15 to 30 days terms.

Aging of trade debts

Not yet due
| - 90 days
Above 91 days

The credit risk exposure of the trade recievable using a provision matrix is as follows:

As at June 30, 2024

Expected credit loss rate %

Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default

Expected credit loss

As at June 30, 2023

Expected credit loss rate %

Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default

Expected credit loss

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
38,359,409 133,597,422
60,007,581 152,758,215
98,366,990 286,355,637
9.1 (60,203,745) (99,829,504)
38,163,245 186,526,133
99,829,504 43,186,180
68,249,940 56,643,324
(107,875,699) -
60,203,745 99,829,504
24,494,788 125,126,838
13,895,661 18,212,574
59,976,541 143,016,225
98,366,990 286,355,637
Not yet due 1-90 Above 91 Total
days days
Rupees
0.49% 100%
24,494,788 13,895,661 59,976,541 98,366,990
119,877 107,327 59,976,541 60,203,745
Not yet due 1-90 Above 91 Total
days days
Rupees
4% 29% 62%
125,126,838 18,212,574 143,016,225 286,355,637
5,604,105 5,232,533 88,992,837 99,829,475

o
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
9.5 Aging of past due or impaired from related party
Above 91| days - 271,306

9.6 The maximum aggregate amount due to the Siddigsons Industries (Private) Limited at the end of any
month during the year is Nil (2023: Rs. 271,306).

10. ADVANCE INCOME TAX

Advance tax 10.1 221,151,176 246,092,941

10.1 Movement

Opening balance 246,092,941 166,311,218
Deducted / paid during the year 82,539,832 137,250,767
Prior year adjustment (737,450) (2,595,151)
Tax refund written off (10,001,897) -
Tax refunded (45,878,925) -
Levies for the year (50,863,325) (54,873,893)
Closing balance 221,151,176 246,092,941

1l. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good
Loan to employees 180,090 309,000
Advance
To suppliers 2,043,287 7,434,588
For Vehicle - 40,000
Against expenses 3,500,380 8,043,844
5,543,667 15,518,432
Against letter of credits' fee and expenses 31,723,710 34,000,312
Less: Provision for advance against letter of credits'
fee and expenses 1.1 (31,495,968) (15,747,984)
227,742 18,252,328

5,951,499 34,079,760
11.1 Provision for advance against letter of
credits' fee and expenses

Opening balance 15,747,984 15,747,984
Provision made during the year 1.2 15,747,984 -
Closing balance 31,495,968 15,747,984

o
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11.2 This includes an amount of Rs. 31.49 million, paid as advance for import of raw material from Centurion

12.1

13.1

13.2

72

Tetra SL (Supplier) through Letter of Credit (LC). The supplier has forfeited the amount of advance and
did not supply raw material due to delay in providing advance as per the terms of the contract. The
Company filed a case in International Court of Arbitration (ICA) due to cross border trade for refund.
The supplier has claimed an amount of $ 346,000 in lieu of loss incurred due to revocation of contract
by the Company. The Company has won the case in the arbitration and recovery proceedings were also
initiated in the Spain court (supplier country court). The Company has also won in the Spanish Court and
the 'assets attachment' process is underway. The management, in consultation with its legal advisor, is
of the view that the amount will be recovered.

The Company had made a provision Rs. 31.49 million (2023: Rs. 15.74 million) against the aforementioned
advance on prudence basis considering the time value of money.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposit for bank guarantee margin 12.1 38,739,714 47,739,714
Prepayments - 481,027
Security deposits for
Tenders 1,956,308 453,480

40,696,022 48,674,221

This includes margin against bank guarantees issued in favour of Excise and Taxation department for
infrastructure cess, anti dumping duty and others.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Term deposits receipts - at amortised cost 13.1 & 13.2 264,564,407 255,523,740

This includes investment in term deposit receipts amounting to Rs. 50 million which carries mark-up at
the rate of 17.75% to 20% (2023: 12% to 17.75%) per annum for the period of three months and will
be matured in the month of July 2024 carried as a lien against CRC project as disclosed in note 6.

Remaining term deposit receipts are held for a maturity period of one year on roll over basis and carries
interest rate 15.95% to 219% (2023: 8.25% to 19.75%). These are lien marked for the purpose of anti
dumping duty and infrastructures cess.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accrued income on Term deposits receipts 10,841,059 9,198,412

Considered doubtful

Receivable against quality and quantity claims 14.1 48,051,691 48,051,691

Receivable against breach of contracts 1,567,500 1,567,500

Other receivable 14.2 7,560,000 7,560,000
57,179,191 57,179,191

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (57,179,191) (57,179,191)
10,841,059 9,198,412
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14.1 This amount relates to an advance paid to a foreign supplier against which the Company has filed a
suit in a Court in Malaysia. In 2013, the Court passed a decree in favour of the Company. However,
based on assessment of irrecoverability of the amount, the Company has made full provision against

this amount.

14.2 An amount of Rs.75.6 million was paid by the Company as an advance for purchase of land to National
Industrial Park (NIP). Due to delay in handing over the land to the Company, the agreement was
cancelled and as per terms of the contract, 10% amount of the total amount was forfeited by NIP
amounting to Rs. 7.56 million. Management is of view that it was due to fault of NIP therefore forfeited
amount should be refunded to the entity under which litigations are in process. However, a provision

for this amount has been recorded.

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note
Cash on hand
Balances with banks:

- Current account- local currency
- Saving account 15.1

- Foreign currency 15.2

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
17,237 513,500
38,436,962 20,067,730
2,059,832 1,143,303
40,496,794 21,211,033
3,366,703 3,466,931
43,880,734 25,191,464

I15.1 Effective mark-up rate in respect of saving accounts range from 8% to 10% (2023: 10% to 20.5%)

per annum.

15.2 These include balance in foreign currency account amounting to USD 12,075.69 (2023: USD

12,075.69).

16. SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023

Number of Shares

Authorised
600,000,000 600,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
198,109,843 198,109,843 Ordinary shares of Rs. |10/-each
fully paid in cash
31,168,927 31,168,927 Issued as fully paid bonus shares
229,278,770 229,278,770

o

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
6,000,000,000 6,000,000,000
1,981,098,430 1,981,098,430

311,689,270 311,689,270
2,292,787,700 2,292,787,700
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16.1 An associated undertaking, Siddigsons Limited holds 15.64% i.e 35,864,101 (2023: 35,514,101)

ordinary shares at the year end.

16.2 The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. The shareholders
are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

LONG-TERM FINANCE

Note

From banking companies (Secured) - At amortised cost

Long-term financing
Less: current portion shown in current liabilities

o

7.1

2023
2024 Restated
Rupees Rupees
210,921,596 531,543,539
(68,720,629) (124,620,817)
142,200,968 406,922,723
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17.1 Long-term financing

Name of institution

Soneri Bank Limited

Al Baraka Bank Limited

Samba Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Limit

Outstanding amount

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Details of financing, security
and repayment terms

2024

97,826,090

147,050,000

15,753,286

12,049,890

2023

130,434,780

600,000,000

33,750,000

15,743,000

2024 2023
Rupees-----=-==--- Restated

85,827,918 109,457,489

97,345,281 382,877,211

15,753,286 24,753,286

11,995,112 14,455,554

210,921,596 531,543,539

o

To finance construction / civil works of CRC
project. The facility is secured against first
equitable Mortgage charge of Rs. 666.67
million over all present and future fixed assets
(land and building only) of the Company
located at Plot No. 272/273 Hub city with
25% margin. Total tenor will not exceed
seven years (including | year grace period).
Principal to be paid in 24 equal quarterly
instalments. Mark up rate is 3 months KIBOR
+ 2.25% (2023: 3 months KIBOR + 1.75%)
on this facility and repayable in quarterly
basis.

To finance construction and installation of 17
MW grid station and 132 KV transmission
line for CRC project. The facility is secured
against pari passu charge over all present and
future assets of the company with 25% margin

Total tenor will not exceed five years
(including | year grace period). Principal to
be paid in 16 equal quarterly instalments.
Mark up rate is 3 months KIBOR + 2% on
this facility and repayable in quarterly basis. The
loan has been paid off subsequently.

The Company has entered into an
arrangement for obtaining Renewable Energy
Financing Facility under State Bank of Pakistan
(SBP) to facilitate Solar Panel installation. The
facility is secured against existing first pari
passu charge/ specific hypo charge on Plant
and Machinery including 25% security margin.
Tenor of the loan is 5 years (including | year
grace period). The repayment of loan
(principal amount) will be made in 16 equal
quarterly instalments. Mark up rate is SBP
rate + 2.5% on this facility and repayable in
quarterly basis.The loan has been paid off
subsequently.

To purchase brand new local assembled
vehicles. The facility is secured against
hypothecation of vehicles under hire purchase
agreement supported by valid comprehensive
insurance cover and as mentioned under
collateral security (2) margin in the shape of
down-payment at the rate of 30% of vehicle
value. Total tenor will not exceed five years.
Mark up rate is 3 months KIBOR + 2% on
this facility and repayable in quarterly basis.
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Note

18. LEASE LIABILITIES

As at July Ol
Additions
Accretion of interest

Payments
As at June 30

Current portion of lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

18.1 The Company entered into lease arrangement for lease of vehicles.

19. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deductible temporary difference in respect of:
- provision for slow moving and obsolete stores and spares
- provision for obselete stock in trade
- provision for expected credit loss
- provision for advance against letter of credits
- provision for doubtful receivables
- carry forward losses
- minimum tax
Taxable temporary difference in respect of:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowance
Deferred tax not recognised
Deferred tax asset

19.1 Movement for the year
Opening

Reversal / Charge for the year
Closing

o

19.2

2024 2023
Rupees Restated
Rupees
14,455,554 4,156,039
- 12,671,750
3,292,480 2,929,460
(5,752,865) (5,301,695)
11,995,169 14,455,554
3,267,901 2,460,441
11,995,169 14,455,554
1,625,039 3,976,409
8,430,732 8,430,732
12,504,455 17,238,522
9,133,831 4,566,915
16,581,965 16,581,965
313,267,380 46,983,311
50,944,81 | 26,475,221
412,488,213 124,253,075
(108,554,398)  (114,648,880)
(303,933,815) -
- 9,604,195
9,604,195 -
(9,604,195) 9,604,195
- 9,604,195
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19.2 As disclosed in note 4.1 1.1, the effective tax rate for deferred tax has been used as per the guide.
Deferred tax asset with respect to minimum tax and unabsorbed tax carry forward losses amounting
Rs. 481.62 million has not been recognized owing to uncertainity regarding future profitability against
which deferred tax asset could be set off.

19.3 Tax losses carried forward
Tax losses amounting to Rs. 489 million (2023: 46.98 million) are set to expire within 2 to 6 year

(2023: | year). Moreover, minimum tax amounting to Rs. 50.94 million (2023: 26.47 million) are set
to expire within 3 years (2023: 3 years.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Restated
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Rupees

Creditors 20.1 265,181,112 265,122,023
Infrastructure cess 20.2 215,251,031 189,129,376

Provision against contingency 20.3 412,567,680 -
Accrued liabilities 16,259,712 12,752,751
Staff provident fund 1,420,924 2,833,500
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 204 66,557,753 52,920,214

Workers' Welfare Fund 20.5 15,253,831 -
Retention money payable 14,937,568 14,800,836
Withholding tax 20.6 11,720,134 10,545,400
1,019,149,745 548,104,100

20.1 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 days terms.

20.2 This represents provision for Sindh Development and Infrastructure Fee and Duty which was levied
by the Excise and Taxation Department of Government of Sindh, on goods entering or leaving the
province of Sindh, through air or sea at prescribed rate, under the Sindh Finance Ordinance, 2001.
The imposition of the levy was initially challenged by the Company along with other affectees, in
the High Court of Sindh, and the Court was pleased to grant an interim injunction, vide Order dated
May 31, 201 1, to the effect that for every consignment cleared after December 28, 2006, 50% of
the value of infrastructure fee should be paid in cash and a bank guarantee for the remaining amount
should be deposited with the Court until the final order is passed. However, as a matter of prudence,
in 2021 the Company has paid 50% of the value of infrastructure fee to the concerned department
and recorded liability for the remaining amount which is supported by a bank guarantee.

o
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20.3

204

20.4.1

20.5

20.6

On June 04, 2021, the SHC vide order C.PNo D-3309 / 201 |, summoned to encash all the bank
guarantees furnished by the petitioners. However the Supreme Court of Pakistan, vide its order
dated September OI, 2021, suspended the order issued by SHC, stating that it suffers from
constitutional and legal defects and granted the interim relief to the Company and other petitioners.
The order issued by the Supreme Court of Pakistan states that the petitioners shall keep the bank
guarantees already submitted pursuant to the earlier order of SHC and shall furnish the fresh bank
guarantees equivalent to the amount of levy calimed by the Sindh Government against release of
all future consignments of imported goods.

This represents the provision recognised against the contingency as disclosed in note 25.2

2024 2023
Workers Profit Participation Fund Note Rupees Rupees
Balance at July Ol 52,920,214 39,476,514
Allocation for the year - 3,389,032
Interest on funds utilised in the Company’s business 20.4.1 13,637,539 10,054,668
Balance at June 30 66,557,753 52,920,214

Interest has been charged at 25.77% (2023: 25.47%) per annum.

The Worker's Welfare Fund pertaining to the prior years recorded during the year. However, as
amounts are not material therefore, comparative figures have not been restated.

This amount includes Balochistan Revenue Authority (BRA) input tax. The Company is registered
with the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) as a manufacturer and not with the Balochistan Revenue
Authority (BRA), as it does not engage in service provision. Contractors and service providers have
submitted BRA invoices, and applicable taxes were withheld for adjustment against output sales tax
work done in CRM. Previously, FBR did not offer consolidated adjustments within provinces. However,
this is now accessible from FBR management is taking steps to ensure these adjustments are
incorporated in future tax periods.

o
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2024 2023
21. DUE TO DIRECTOR e Rupees
Balance at July Ol 194,000,000 -
Obtained 700,000,000 255,000,000
Repaid (542,000,000)  (61,000,000)
Balance at June 30 352,000,000 194,000,000

This represents loan from director which is interest free and payable on demand, for the purpose of
emergent requirement of working capital.

2024 2023
22. DUE TO ASSOCIATE Rupees Rupees
Balance at July Ol 279,281,995 -
Obtained 9,032,758 583,481,995
Repaid (235,078,167)  (304,200,000)
Balance at June 30 53,236,586 279,281,995

This represents loan from associate which is markup free and payable on demand, for the purpose of
emergent requirement of working capital. The company has not recorded markup on the plea that Section
199 of the Companies Act, 2017 is applicable to any company which makes investment in its associate
undertaking and specifically describes the requirements to be fullfilled by the investing company. Furthermore,
balance amount at the year end has reduced to the extent of nominal balance of Rs 53.236 million.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
23. INTEREST / MARK-UP ACCRUED ON BORROWINGS
Long-term finances 13,019,208 17,620,154
Short-term borrowings 93,786,223 65,118,493
106,805,431 82,738,647

o
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25,
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2024 2023
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS Note LRpees Rupees
From banking companies
Book overdraft 24.1 5,239,996 4,781,603
Finance against imports 24.2 890,812,632 263,784,212
Running finances under markup arrangements 243 593,966,408 930,884,945

1,490,019,036 1,199,450,760

24.1 This includes a cheque issued to Nazir High court against K-Electric.

24.2 These are secured against hypothecation on fixed assets, stock-in-trade, trade debts and charge
on present and future current assets of the Company and lien on import documents. Loans were
subject to mark-up ranged between 20.50% to 22% (2023: 15.16% to 24.23% ) per annum. The
borrowing has been substantially paid subsequent to the year end.

24.3 These are secured against charge on fixed assets, stock-in-trade, trade debts and present and future
current assets of the Company and are subject to the mark-up ranging between 23.98% to 26.15%
(2023: 17% to 24.18% ) per annum.

24.4 The aggregate unavailed-short term borrowing facilities amounts to Rs. 708.22 million (2023: Rs.
1,092 million) as of the reporting date.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

25.1 The Company imports Tin Mill Black Plate / CRC coils from different countries for producing Tin
Plate for exportation under manufacturing bond facility and local supply for home consumption
on payment of leviable duty and taxes. The imported materials are warehoused in the manufacturing
bond without payment of duty and taxes for in-house consumption for producing of exportable
products. The Company is availing the manufacturing bond facility since 201 |, huge quantity of Tin
Plate produced by the Company was exported, adding considerable forex to the national exchequer.
However, to process the renewal of the manufacturing bond warehousing license, a team of
Regulatory Collectorate MCC-Gawadar, Camp office, Customs House, Gaddani, visited the bonded
warehouse for stock taking and reconciliation of imports vis-a-vis exports documentation and
records. Based on a allegedly reconciliation audit conducted by the regulatory Collectorate, a
purported shortage of 1055 MT of the imported materials i.e. CRC / Tin Mill Black Plate was
arbitrarily pointed out despite the fact that the aforesaid quantity was fully accounted for and earlier
custom annual audit reports didnot point out such discrepancy.
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During the course of quasi-judicial proceedings before the learned Adjudication Authority, all the
charges levelled in the Show Cause Notice were duly rebutted through submission of detailed
written reply and verbal representation before the learned Adjudicating Authority, based on
misreading and non-reading of evidence adduced by the Petitioner i.e. Gaddani Collectorate, the
Adjudication Authority, passed the Order-in-Original No. 334 / 2019 dated November 7, 2019,
for recovery of purported evaded amount of duty and taxes amounting to Rs. 64,192,547 on
purported removal of 1055 MT of CRC / Tin Mill Black Plate from Manufacturing Bond. While
being aggrieved of the aforesaid Order-in-Original No. 334 / 2019, the Company preferred an
appeal bearing No. G-1298 / 2019 on November |1, 2019, under section 194A of the Customs
Act, 1969, before the learned Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi. However, no decision was
taken by the Tribunal, since it was non-functional. Pending the appeal, before the learned Customs
Appellate Tribunal, Karachi, the Petitioner also moved the Hon’ble High Court of Sindh, at Karachi
vide Constitutional Petition No. D-7820 / 2019, assailing the demand notice for recovery of
purported evaded amount of duty and taxes amounting to Rs 64,192,547 issued in pursuance of
Order-in-Original No. 334 / 2019. The Hon’ble High Court of Sindh, vide interim Order dated
December 5, 2019, directed the Respondent not to enforce recovery of impugned Demand Notice
which is subject matter of appeal pending before the Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi, till next
date of hearing. However, after hearing the parties at length, the Hon’ble High Court of Sindh, at
Karachi vide order dated December 19, 2019 disposed of the above petition, with the directions
to the Respondents not to enforce recovery of impugned Demand Notice, being the subject matter
of appeal, and further directed the Petitioner to file urgent application before the concerned bench
of Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi. The Tribunal has stayed the recovery and the case is pending
adjudication with the Tribunal. Subsequent to the year end, the Tribunal has given the decision
uphelding the adjudication order. The Comapny has filed rectification and amendments against the
judgement dated March 18, 2024 on May 29, 2024 before the tribunal. and has requested for
urgent hearing. The rectification request has not come up for hearing till today and we are hopeful
that the rectification expected shall clear the arbitrary audit issue, raised without any basis.

In midst of the above legal battle, the Collector, Gaddani, had cancelled the manufacturing bond
license of the Company. However, the Chief Collector has subsequently restored the manufacturing
Bond status.

Keeping in view the fact that the restoration has been granted, the Management is expecting a
favourable decision, therefore no provision is made in these financial statements.

25.2 In April 2018, the Company signed a contract with M/s. New Metallurgy Hi-Tech Group Co. Ltd.
(the Supplier) of about RMB 123.30 million, for setting up a Cold Rolling Mills Complex and Acid
Regeneration Plant in Hub, Baluchistan. As per the contract, the shipment of Plant and Machinery
was required to be completed by April 30, 2020 and the Cold Rolled Coil Unit had to start
production by December, 2020.

o
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The Company has already invested more than Rs. 2,000 million on Land, Building, Infrastructure,
Plant and machinery and civil construction of site including foundations duly completed as per
specific drawings given by the Supplier, for laying Machinery. The Company has also paid 33%
advance for design, engineering and shipment of the plant, amounting to RMB 40 million. As
stipulated under the contract, majority of the component of plant, machinery and equipment had
to be shipped in February 2020 and the remaining consignments by April 30, 2020. However, the
Supplier failed to ship within the stipulated timeline. Meanwhile, the Bank Guarantees issued by
the Supplier were expiring in April 2020. The Supplier besides delaying shipment did not extend
Bank Guarantees beyond its expiry date in April 2020. These bank guarantees covered the
consignments to be shipped, by April 30, 2020, since the consignments were not shipped, it left
no option for the Company but to call for the encashment of Bank Guarantees to secure itself.

On August 27, 2020 the Supplier filed a case in Singapore International Arbitration Centre (SIAC)
and appointed the arbitrator, contesting the case of encashment of above described Bank Guarantees.
The Supplier claimed the right to retain the payments already made as an advance by the Company
amounting to RMB 19.52 million. The Supplier also claimed for the damages and losses of RMB
35.86 million.

The Company also appointed the arbitrator and a lawyer to defend its position. The Company
counter claimed USD 12.65 million with a detailed response on September 17, 2020 against the
failure to make the delivery of goods within agreed timeline by the Supplier.

On October 06, 2022, Singapore International Arbitration Council (SIAC) has awarded that the
Company wrongfully repudiated the Contracts by, inter alia, encashing the Bank Guarantees and
attempted to cancel the letter of credit (LC). The SIAC had further declared that the Company
is liable to pay Rs. 1,640.39 million as detailed below and the supplier has right to forfeit advance
amounting to Rs.408.40 million made by the Company

. CNY (Chinese Yuan) 35,799,296 (amounting to Rs. 1,371 million) in damages as compensation
for losses suffered by the Supplier (A);

2. legal costs and disbursements being SGD (Singaporean Dollar) 40,017.74 (amounting to Rs.
8.2 million) and CNY 3,111,489 (amounting to Rs. 121.35 million) (B) to Supplier; and

3. interest of 0.9446% per annum compounded monthly; on 'I' (from August 28, 2020) and
on 2' (from the date of the award); until the same are fully and finally paid which is around
CNY 1.3 million (amounting to Rs. 53.62 Million)

4. 50% of the costs of arbitration, amounting to SGD 296,852.28 (Rs. 60.89 million).
Furthermore, SIAC declared that the Supplier has right to retain the payments in the amount of

CNY 19,515,577 made by the Company under the CRM Contract as disclosed in note 6 of the
financial statements.
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Following the receipt of the final award, the Company, after consulting with its Singaporean legal
advisors, filed a case in the High Court of the Republic of Singapore (HCRS), having Case No
HC/OA 809/2022, on December 5, 2022, challenging the decision of the Singapore International
Arbitration Centre (SIAC).

On July 04, 2023, the Supplier filed an application having suit No. 1098 of 2023 (now J.M. 18 of
2025) in the High Court of Sindh (HCS) seeking the enforcement of the final award dated October
6, 2020. The application also included a claim for the recovery of legal costs incurred to that date,
along with a request to restrain the Company from selling its immovable property.

On May 21, 2024, the HCS issued an order in above suit, directing that the proceedings be stayed
and restrained the Company from disposing of its two immovable until a final decision is issued in
the case pending before the HCRS (Case No HC/OA 809/2022) as disclosed in Note 5.1.3 to the
financial statements.

On August 28, 2024, the HCRS issued the final decision in which it dismissed HC/OA 809/ 2022,
ordering the Company to pay legal costs of SGD (Singaporean Dollar) 35,000 to the Supplier in
addition to amounts determined in award.On September 25, 2024, the Company filed an application
for appeal in the Supreme Court of Singapore and which was withdrawn following an agreement
of mediation signed on February 24, 2025 with the Supplier.

In the mediation proposal, the Company has offered Rs 820.97 million for mediation out of which
Rs. 408.40 million is held with the supplier on advance as disclosed in Note 6 and during the year
provison of the amount of Rs 820.97 million has been made as reflected on the face of the
Statement Of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

In the High Court of Sindh, suit ].M.No. 18 of 2026, (earlier Suit No.1098 of 2023) is currently
pending between the Supplier and the Company which seeks the enforcement of the Arbitration
Award made in Singapore. The Company's challange to the Award which was pending before the
Supreme Court Of Singapore was withdrawn on the condition that the Company as well as the
Claimant woul attempt mediation in good faith. Subsequently the Claimant sought enforcement
of the Award, while the Company has filed an Application with the prayer that the Award's
enforcement be refused and for the direction that the Parties should complete the process of good
faith mediation. This application is pending till date. The Company's laibilities will substantially
depend on whether the Company is successful in having matter referred to mediation as well as
the result of the mediation if any , however if this fails and the Award is enforced, the Company's
liability would equal the value of the Award along with costs/interest.

Besides above, the matter for repatriation of the mobilisation advance amounting to Rs. 408.40
million (RMB | 1.30 million), paid to the above mentioned supplier, is under consideration with the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). Since the shipments under the contract could not be effected within
the stipulated time allowed by SBP, the case has been highlighted as overdue. SBP has issued
correspondence to the Company and the bank involved in the project, requesting the submission
of shipping documents, which are yet to be provided by the Company. Applicable penalty rates,
as per SBP guidelines for overdue cases, may be imposed accordingly.

o
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As discussed above, the provision of Rs 820.97 million has duly been made in the financial statements
and as of reporting date the management believes this provision is sufficient to settle the final
liability in case it materializes.

Tax assessments of the Company have been amended for the tax year 2017 under Section
161/128/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, demanding Rs. 17,776,816, the Company filed
appeal on January 25, 2021 before Commissioner Income Revenue against the order which has
been reserved for order.

Tax assessments of the Company have been amended for the tax years 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2008
under Section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, by the tax department. The Company
contested the levy of tax by department on the ground that the Company was enjoying exemption
under Clause 126 of Part | of Second Schedule to the Ordinance as levy of minimum tax is not
applicable on the Company. Appeals are pending before Sindh High Court, Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT) and CIT (Appeals) respectively. The Company is confident that outcome will be
in its favour. However, as a matter of prudence, tax provision of Rs. 35,610,818 for the respective
tax years has been made in the financial statements under Section | |3 of the Ordinance.

2024 2023
Commitments Rupees Rupees
Letters of credit for import of raw material 481,641,250 1,146,627,488
Bank guarantees in favour of Excise and taxation department
relating to anti-dumping and infrastructure cess 264,564,407 255,523,740
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Note
26. REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Local
Tin Plate
Cans

Export
Tin Plate 26.1

Less : Commission and discounts
Sales return
Sales tax

26.1 Following are the details of export sales based on geographical region:

United Arab Emirates
Afghanistan

0 Rs. 10,081,999 million (2023: Rs. 6,520,137 million).

27. COST OF GOODS SOLD
Cost of goods manufactured - Tin Plate 27.1
Finished goods

Opening stock
Net purchases

Closing stock

o
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2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
4,238,587,903  4,736,032,262
567,523,818 442,819,790
4,806,111,721  5,178,852,052

32,594,313 19,277,664
4,838,706,034  5,198,129,716
(15,901,216) (19,512,262)
(7,137,152) (20,466,124)
(740,082,811)| | (764,384,362)
(763,121,179)  (804,362,748)
4,075,584,855  4,393,766,968
13,745,485 19,277,664
18,848,828 -
32,594,313 19,277,664

Revenue recognized from amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year amounted to

3,743,72,545  4,108,351,697
564,876,307 435,182,378
31,683,964 15,112,000
4,339,832,816  4,558,646,075
(208,777,927)  (564,876,307)
4,131,054889 3,993,769,768
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27.1

27.1.1

Cost of goods manufactured - Tin Plate

Raw material consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits
Fuel and power

Packing materials

Stores and spares

Sorting, slitting and cutting
Anti-dumping duty

Short term lease

Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Transportation

Traveling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Fees and subscription
Communication
Entertainment

Security expenses
Depreciation

Provision for slow moving stores and spares
Other manufacturing cost

Raw material consumed

Opening stock
Net purchases and related expenses

Closing stock

5.1.2
7.1

27.1.2  This includes employees’ retirement benefits of Rs. 4,994,098 (2023: Rs. 4,862,282).

28.

28.1

86

DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and benefits
Traveling
Transportation
Advertisement
Sales promotion
Export expenses
Others

This includes employees’ retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 377,384 (2023: Rs. 752,590).

o

28.1

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
3,416,164,647  3,837,559,923

162,989,728 158,120,166
54,419,062 56,165,774
2,828,003 2,444,869
25,090,884 12,189,954
3,230,740 4,177,932
- (27,356,850)
2,125,860 1,948,705
10,615,227 6,932,667
7,864,625 5,884,876
3,604,378 3,631,023
7,853,310 6,703,154
171,017 240,846
914,406 730,000
838,787 723,448
399,449 343,464
3,895,629 3,111,618
27,892,546 28,836,797
- 2,573,257
12,374,247 3,390,074
3,743,272,545  4,108,351,697
106,619,782 257,225,961
3,382,194,608 3,686,953,744
3,488,814,390  3,944,179,705
(72,649.743) _ (106,619,782)
3,416,164,647 3,837,559,923
9,498,978 17,432,860
2,203,267 2,306,431
4,735,713 5,192,946
1,461,790 287,450
178,140 251,446
547,736 872,645
516,746 816,242
19,142,370 27,160,020
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29.

29.1

29.2

30.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Traveling and conveyance
Vehicles running and maintenance
Depreciation - owned assets
Depreciation - right of use assets
Communication

Printing and stationery

Repairs and maintenance
Entertainment

Auditor's remuneration
Insurance

Fees and subscription

Rates and taxes

Legal and professional

Service charges

Others

Note

29.1

v o

hadiba
- N

29.2

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

This includes employees’ retirement benefits of Rs. 1,943,646 (2023: Rs. 2,451,307).

Auditor's remuneration

Yousuf Adil & Co.
Annual audit
Half yearly review

Review of compliance of Code of Corporate Governance

Tax and other services
Out of pocket expenses

Muniff Ziauddin & Co.
Annual audit

Review of compliance of Code of Corporate Governance

OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' profit participation fund
Workers' welfare fund

Provision for advance against letter of credits' fee and expenses

Advance tax written off
Advances written off

Unrealized exchange loss on foreign currency account
Unrealized exchange loss on foreign trade recievables

o

20
1.1
10.1

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

63,030,258 57,438,887
5,971,153 6,331,785
9,635,704 9,583,632
4,302,764 5,349,869
4,932,591 4,504,845
763,437 681,809
1,838,393 1,598,398
1,214,800 1,885,680
2,283,405 916,681
3,451,800 1,648,800
1,402,703 1,356,546
4,814,821 5,728,794
121,000 77,366
18,425,798 10,765,410
6,247,685 3,164,770
9,006,629 325,931
137,442,941 111,359,203
1,307,000 1,045,000
413,000 330,000
42,000 33,000
200,000 100,000
140,800 140,800
2,102,800 1,648,800

1,307,000 -

42,000 -
1,349,000 -
3,451,800 1,648,800
- 3,389,032
15,253,831 -
15,747,984 -
10,001,897 -
2,093,905 70,285
107,567 -

4,249,091 -

47,454,275 3,459,317
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31.

32.

33.

33.1

34.

34.1

88

2024 2023
Rupees Restated
Rupees
FINANCE COST
Interest / mark-up on:
Long term finances 100,488,322 1,016,981
Lease liabilities 3,292,480 2,929,460
Short-term borrowings 473,572,181 143,020,121
Workers' profit participation fund 13,637,539 10,054,668
Exchange loss on borrowing - net - 37,420,819
Bank charges and commission 5,195,216 20,774,985
596,185,739 215,217,034
OTHER INCOME
Profit on bank deposits and TDR 43,225,050 34,059,009
Unrealized exchange gain on foreign trade receivables - 26,445,228
Unrealized exchange gain on foreign currency account - 731,183
Reversal of provision for slow moving stores and spares 8,108,172 -
Liabilities written back 1,634,327 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 772,870 2,080,122
Insurance claim = 1,450,000
Scrap sales 10,625 9,515
Miscellaneous - 14,550
53,751,044 64,789,607
LEVIES
Final taxes 325,943 192,777
Minimum taxes 33.1 50,537,382 54,681,116
Prior year levies 737,450 2,595,151
51,600,775 57,469,044

This represents provision for minimum tax under section 153, of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The provision
for minimum tax has been recognised as levies in these financial statements as per the requirements of IFRIC
21| 'Levies' or IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' and guide on IAS 12 'Income
Taxes' issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

TAXATION

9,604,195
9,604,195

Deferred taxation (9,604,195)

(9,604,195)

The Company is being taxable under minimum tax regime, therefore, no tax reconciliation has been prepared.

o

| R, Siddigsons Tin Piate Linited

A Siddigsons Group Company



35. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Loss) / profit for the year (Rupees)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year (Numbers)

(Loss) / earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2024 2023
Rupees Restated
Rupees
(2,058,499,135) 3,083,060
229,278,770 229,278,770
(8.98) 0.0l

There is no dilutive effect of the basic earnings per share of the Company.

36. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, other related group companies, directors of the
Company, key management personnel and post employment benefit plans. The Company in the normal
course of business carries out transactions with various related parties at agreed terms. Remuneration of
directors and key management personnel is disclosed in note 37. Other transactions with related parties

are as follows:

Name of the
related party

Siddigsons Limited
Muhammad Tariq Rafi
Provident Fund

Siddigsons Industries
(Private) Limited

Relationship % of holding
Associated Company 15.64%

| Shareholder

Chairman / Director 25.13%

Staff provident fund -

Associated Company -

Balance with related party at reporting date is as follows:

Balance as at
June 30

Siddigsons Limited

Muhammad Tariq Rafi

Provident Fund

Siddigsons Industries
(Private) Limited

Relationship % of holding
Associated Company / 15.64%
Shareholder

Chairman / Director 25.13%

Staff provident fund -

Associated Company -

Nature of
Transactions

Loan obtained
Loan repaid

Loan obtained
Loan repaid

Expense charged

Expense

Nature of
Balance

Payable to associate

Payable to director

Payable to staff
provident fund

Recievable from

associated company

2024
Rupees

9,032,758
(235,078,167)

700,000,000
(542,000,000)

7,315,128

271,306

53,236,586

352,000,000

1,420,924

2023
Rupees

583,481,995
(304,200,000)

255,000,000
(61,000,000)

8,066,179

279,281,995

194,000,000

2,833,500

271,306
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37. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2024 2023
Directors Directors
Chief Non- Chief Non-
Executive Executive Executive Executives Executive Executive Executive  Executives
..................................................... RUPEES ....coiiiiiiiiieiiiccicc
Remuneration 3,940,751 4,401,057 23,886,154 4,322,343 3,275,724 32,908,990
House rent 1,379,263 3,335,943 7,962,051 1,571,772 2,482,955 11,966,987
Retirement benefits 437,861 - 1,687,612 337,207 - 2,418,648
Vehicles running 744,364 3,999,569 1,362,440 7,092,682
Utilities 65,679 - 379,143 45,000 - - 571,000
Meeting fee 75,000 75,000 375,000 180,000 60,000 45,000 195,000 -
6,642,918 7,812,000 375000 38,094,529 7,698,762 50803,679 195000 54,958,307
Number of persons I | 5 15 | I 19
37.1 The chief executive officer, directors and few executives are also provided free use of Company
maintained cars.
38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Company's liabilities arising from the financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes, if any. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Company's statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.
Cash flows
July 1, Obtained Repaid June 30,
2023 2024
Rupees
Restated
Long-term finances 531,543,539 - (320,621,943) 210,921,596
Lease liabilities 14,455,554 - (2,460,384) 11,995,169
Finance against imports 263,784,212 2,705,314,459 (2,078,286,039) 890,812,632
Book overdraft 4,781,603 - 458,393 5,239,996
Due to director 194,000,000 700,000,000 (542,000,000) 352,000,000
Due to associate 279,281,995 9,032,758 (235,078,167) 53,236,586
Unclaimed dividend 1,958,701 - (163,777) 1,794,924
2024 Rupees [,289,805,604 3,414,347,217 (3,178,151,917)  1,526,000,903
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial instruments by category
Financial assets
At amortised cost

Long term deposits
Trade debts

Loans and advances
Trade deposits

Other financial assets
Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
At amortised cost

Long term finance

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables
Due to associate

Due to director

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Short-term borrowings
Unclaimed dividend
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2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

10,066,221 10,056,221
38,163,245 186,526,133
180,090 309,000
40,696,022 48,674,221
264,564,407 255,523,740
10,841,059 9,198,412
43,880,734 25,191,464
408,391,778 535,479,191
210,921,597 531,543,539
11,995,169 14,455,554
708,946,073 292,675,610
53,236,586 279,281,995
352,000,000 194,000,000
106,805,431 82,738,647
1,490,019,036 1,199,450,760
1,794,924 1,958,701
2,935718,816 2,596,104,806
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39.2

39.2.1

Financial risk management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's financial risk management. The responsibility includes developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight responsibility,
management has been made responsible for identifying, monitoring and managing the Company's
financial risk exposures. The Company's exposure to the risks associated with the financial
instruments and the risk management policies and procedures are summarised as follows:

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of
any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged
in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. The Company does not have any
significant exposure to customers from any single country or single customer.

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from trade debts, trade deposits, term deposit
certificates, other receivable and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets represents
the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 10,066,221 10,056,221
Trade debts 38,163,245 186,526,133
Loans and advances 180,090 309,000
Trade deposits 40,696,022 48,674,221
Other financial assets 264,564,407 255,523,740
Other receivables 10,841,059 9,198,412
Bank balances 43,863,497 24,677,964

408,374,541 534,965,691
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Trade debts are due from local and foreign customers against sales. Management assesses the credit
quality of local customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other
factors. As at the reporting date, there are past due trade debt balances which in management
view are recoverable as disclosed in the notes. For bank balances and significant trade deposits,
financial institutions with strong credit ratings are accepted, credit risk on bank balances and term
deposit certificates are limited as these are placed with banks having good credit ratings.

39.2.2 Credit risk related to trade debts

Customers' credit risk is managed subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. The management monitors and limits the
Company's exposure of credit risk by limiting transactions with specific counter parties and continually
assessing their credit worthiness. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

In determining the recoverability of trade debts, the Company considers any change in the credit
quality of the trade debt from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The
customer base is large and unrelated and does not have credit risk concentration.

The average age of receivables is | | days (2023: 21 days).

The Company is not exposed to major concentration on credit risk. At June 30, 2024, the Company
has approximately 2 customers (2023: 6 customers) that owed more than Rs. 10 million each and
accounted for approximately 43.60% (2023: 65.53%) of all trade debts.

The Company does not hold collateral as security.
39.2.3 Credit risk related to financial instruments and cash deposits

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily for other financial
deposits with banks and financial institutions, and other financial instruments. The credit risk on
liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings i.e.
Al to Al + in short term and AA- to AAA for long term.

39.3 Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk
arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than
expected or would have difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's
reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and availability of financing through banking arrangements, which includes short-term borrowings.

o
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39.3.1 Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

June 30, 2024

Interest/markup Bearing Non-Interest/markup Bearing Total
Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity
within one after one Sub-total within one after one Sub-total
year year year year
Rupees

Financial liabilities
Long term finances 68,720,629 142,200,968 210,921,597 - - - 210,921,597
Lease liabilities 3,267,901 8,727,268 11,995,169 - - 11,995,169
Trade and other payables - - - 708,946,073 - 708,946,073 708,946,073
Interest / mark-up accrued - - 106,805,431 - 106,805,431 106,805,431
Short-term borrowings  1,490,019,036 - 1,490,019,036 - - 1,490,019,036
Due to director - - - 352,000,000 - 352,000,000 352,000,000
Due to associate - - - 53,236,586 - 53,236,586 53,236,586
Unclaimed dividend - - - 1,794,924 - 1,794,924 1,794,924

562,007,566 150,928,236  1,712,935,802 1,222,783,014 - 1,222,783,014  2,935718,816

June 30,2023

Interest/markup Bearing Non-Interest/markup Bearing Total
Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity
within one after one Sub-total within one after one Sub-total
year year year year
Rupees

Financial liabilities
Long term finances 124,620,817 406,922,722 531,543,539 - - - 531,543,539
Lease liabilities 2,460,441 11,995,113 14,455,554 - - 14,455,554
Trade and other payables - - - 292,675,610 - 292,675,610 292,675,610
Interest / mark-up accrued - - - 82,738,647 - 82,738,647 82,738,647
Short-term borrowings  1,199,450,760 - 1,199,450,760 - - [,199,450,760
Due to director - - - 194,000,000 - 194,000,000 194,000,000
Due to associate - - - 279,281,995 - 279,281,995 279,281,995
Unclaimed dividend - - - 1,958,701 - 1,958,701 1,958,701

1,326,532,018 418917835 1,745449,853 850,654,953 - 850,654,953 2,596,104,806
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39.4 Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk.

39.4.1 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or
its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

Yield / Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate risk arises from
long and short term borrowings from financial institutions. At the reporting date the interest rate
risk profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is:

2024 2023
Variable rate instruments Rupees Rupees
Financial assets
Term deposit certificates 264,564,407 255,523,740
Bank balances 2,059,832 1,143,303

266,624,239 256,667,043

Financial liabilities

Long-term finance 210,921,597 531,543,539
Short-term borrowings 1,490,019,036  1,199,450,760
1,700,940,633  1,730,994,299

o
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Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments - Financial Liabilities

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Company'’s loss before levies and taxation for the year ended would increase
|/ decrease by Rs. 8,530,133 (2023: Rs. 8,703,341). This is mainly attributable to the

Company’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments - Financial Assets

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Company’s loss before taxation for the year ended would increase / decrease
by Rs. 1,333,121 (2023: Rs. 1,283,335). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate deposits.

39.5 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly
where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases, borrowings and
deposits which are entered in a currency other than Pak Rupees.

2024 2023 2024 2023
USD / EURO PKR
Trade debts - USD 175,939 532,073 49,051,757 152,758,215
Trade debts - EURO 36,714 91,697 10,955,824
Foreign currency bank balances 12,076 12,076 3,366,703 3,466,931

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rates Reporting date rates
2024 2023 2024 2023
US Dollars to PKR 283.24 247.99 278.34 285.99
EURO to PKR 306.38 260.44 297.69 312.93

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company
ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

At June 30, 2024, if the Rupee had strengthen / weakened by 5% against the US dollar with all other
variables held constant, loss before levies and taxation for the year would have been decreased /
increased by Rs. 3,168,714 (2023: Rs. 7,81 1,257). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in

particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as in previous
year.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The carrying value of all the financial instruments reported in the financial statements approximates their
fair value as the items are short term in nature.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels | to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

* Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2024, the Company has no financial instruments that falls into any of the above category.
There were no transfers between Level | and 2 in the year.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Chief Executive considers the business as a single operating segment as the Company's assets allocation
decisions are based on a single, integrated business strategy, and the Company's performance is evaluated
on an overall basis.

Out of total sales of the Company 99.20% (2023: 99.63%) relates to customers in Pakistan.

All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2024 are located in Pakistan.

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218
of Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified there under.

o

I, Sicdiqsons Tin Plate Limited /R | 97

A Siddigsons Group Company



ANNUAL REPORT 2024

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are as follows:

- The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

- The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and bene?ts for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

- Consistently with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is
calculated as total debt (as shown in the balance sheet) less cash and bank balances. Adjusted capital
comprises of net debts and all components of equity (i.e. share capital and unappropriated profit).

- The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Total debts

Less: Cash and bank balances

Net debt
Total equity

Adjusted capital

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

44. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Tin Plate
Installed capacity

Actual production

Cans

Installed capacity of various sizes

Actual production of various sizes

o

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

2,118,172,388  2,218,731,848
(43,880,734)  (25,191,464)

2,074,291,654  2,193,540,384
[,162,577,541  3,221,076,676

3,236,869,195  5,414,617,060

0.64 0.41

2024 2023
(Metric tons)

120,000 120,000

8,350 11,386

(Number per annum)

4,015,000 4,015,000

1,838,039 1,612,875
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44.1 Under utilisation of available capacity was due to inconsistent availability of raw material and inflow
of imported Electrolytic Tin Plate at dumped price.

2024 2023
NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED
Number of employees at June 30 132 198
Average number of employees during the year 182 226
DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company on June 26, 2025.
GENERAL
47.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.
47.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified in these financial statements, wherever

necessary for the purpose of comparison and for better presentation.
P
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER #” DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited
A Siddigsons Group Company
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PATTERN OF HOLDING OF SHARESHELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS
as at June 30, 2024

No. of Share Holding Total Percentage
Shareholders From To Shares Held %

650 | 100 23507 0.0103

561 101 500 245243 0.1070

1034 501 1000 794351 0.3465

1537 1001 5000 4362076 1.9025

572 5001 10000 45681 14 1.9924

209 10001 15000 2701142 1.1781

144 15001 20000 2662631 1.1613

118 20001 25000 2799945 1.2212

66 25001 30000 1897381 0.8275

44 30001 35000 1477982 0.6446

46 35001 40000 1776460 0.7748

29 40001 45000 1239958 0.5408

62 45001 50000 3071055 1.3394

17 50001 55000 902353 0.3936

28 55001 60000 1650533 0.7199

13 60001 65000 825270 0.3599

20 65001 70000 1376160 0.6002

12 70001 75000 883641 0.3854

Il 75001 80000 859004 0.3747

Il 80001 85000 910338 0.3970

5 85001 90000 443000 0.1932

8 90001 95000 748607 0.3265

31 95001 100000 3098500 1.3514

Il 100001 105000 1122428 0.4895

5 105001 | 10000 541700 0.2363

3 110001 I 15000 344000 0.1500

2 115001 120000 240000 0.1047

3 120001 125000 373500 0.1629

2 125001 130000 258400 0.1127

2 130001 135000 265000 0.1156

2 135001 140000 275000 0.1199

2 140001 145000 285500 0.1245

2 145001 150000 295500 0.1289

4 150001 155000 615692 0.2685

| 155001 160000 160000 0.0698

| 160001 165000 163000 0.0711

3 165001 170000 502500 0.2192

| 170001 175000 175000 0.0763

| 175001 180000 178000 0.0776

| 180001 185000 185000 0.0807

2 185001 190000 380000 0.1657

2 190001 195000 389170 0.1697

7 195001 200000 1400000 0.6106

| 200001 205000 203500 0.0888

| 205001 210000 209851 0.0915

| 210001 215000 211500 0.0922

| 215001 220000 220000 0.0960

| 220001 225000 225000 0.0981

| 225001 230000 229721 0.1002

| 235001 240000 236500 0.1032
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No. of Share Holding Total Percentage
Shareholders From To Shares Held %
2 255001 260000 516970 0.2255
2 260001 265000 525000 0.2290
| 265001 270000 267970 0.1169
| 270001 275000 275000 0.1199
| 285001 290000 287000 0.1252
2 295001 300000 597000 0.2604
| 300001 305000 303500 0.1324
| 340001 345000 341497 0.1489
| 355001 360000 359648 0.1569
| 360001 365000 364502 0.1590
| 370001 375000 372695 0.1626
| 375001 380000 379000 0.1653
| 390001 395000 393000 0.1714
| 395001 400000 400000 0.1745
| 415001 420000 420000 0.1832
| 475001 480000 480000 0.2094
| 480001 485000 480500 0.2096
| 495001 500000 500000 0.218l1
| 500001 505000 500376 0.2182
| 505001 510000 510000 0.2224
| 545001 550000 546500 0.2384
I 555001 560000 560000 0.2442
| 595001 600000 600000 0.2617
2 625001 630000 1254580 0.5472
| 715001 720000 719500 0.3138
| 725001 730000 725420 0.3164
| 790001 795000 791500 0.3452
| 800001 805000 803000 0.3502
| 875001 880000 880000 0.3838
2 895001 900000 1800000 0.7851
2 995001 1000000 2000000 0.8723
| 1175001 1 180000 | 175048 0.5125
| 1565001 1570000 1566369 0.6832
| 2245001 2250000 2250000 0.9813
| 2520001 2525000 2520055 1.0991
| 5460001 5465000 5464362 2.3833
| 5530001 5535000 5533729 2.4135
| 8655001 8660000 8659997 3.7771
| 8675001 8680000 8677232 3.7846
| 9060001 9065000 9060429 39517
| 10735001 10740000 10735359 4.6822
| 12190001 12195000 12193736 5.3183
| 35860001 35865000 35864101 15.6421
| 57620001 57625000 57621482 25.1316
5342 Company Total 229278770 100.0000
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
as at June 30, 2024

Particulrs No of Folio Balance Share Percentage

DIRECTORS, SPONSORS, CEO & CHILDREN

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 6 85540325 37.3084
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 2 35893300 15.6549
BANKS, DFI & NBFI 4 731000 0.3188
GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 5000 89146812 38.8814
GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) 297 11897813 5.1892
OTHERS 28 6024520 2.6276
EMPLOYEES 5 45000 0.0196
Company Total 5342 229278770 100.0000
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INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER THE CODE OF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
as at June 30, 2024
Shareholder’s Category Number of
Shares held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties
Siddigsons Limited 35,864,101 15.64
Siddigsons Denim Mills Ltd. Staff Provident Fund 29,199 0.0l
NIT and ICP NIL
Directors, Sponsors, CEO and their spouse and minor children
Mr. Tariq Rafi (Chairman) 57,621,482 25.13
Mr. Ibrahim Shamsi 2,520,055 .10
Ms. Alia Sajjad 10,626,798 4.63
Mrs. Nighat Tariq W/o. Mr. Tariq Rafi 22,929,095 10.00
Mrs. Rahma Ibrahim W/o. Mr. Ibrahim Shamsi 8,659,997 3.78
Mr. Abdul Wahab 115,000 0.05
Mr. Munir Qureshi 480,000 0.21
Mr. Sajjad Ahsan H/o Ms. Alia Sajjad 5,000 -
Insurance Companies NIL
Banks, DFI & NBFI 731,000 0.32
Executives NIL
Public sector Companies and Corporations NIL
Modarabas & Mutual Fund NIL
Shareholders holding ten percent or more
Mr. Tariq Rafi (Chairman) 57,621,482 25.13
Siddigsons Limited 35,864,101 15.64
Mrs. Nighat Tariq W/o. Mr. Tariq Rafi 22,929,095 10.00
Trading in share by Directors, CEO, CFO & Company Secretary NIL
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PROXY FORM

29th Annual General Meeting

I/We of

being a member of SIDDIQSONS TIN PLATE LIMITED (the Company)

holding ordinary shares, hereby appoint(s)
Mr. / Mrs. / Miss.
of who is

also a member of the Company, to be my/our proxy and to vote for me/us at the 29th Annual General Meeting
of M/s. Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited will be held on Friday, July 25, 2025 at 12:00 p.m. at Ocean Mall & Tower,

4th Floor, Block-9, Scheme-5, Clifton, Karachi or at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2025
Folio No.
CDC A/c No.
Member's Signature

. No.
Sub Afe. No (Signature should agree
No. of Shares held with the specimen signature

registered with the Company)

Witness | Witness 2
Signature Signature
Name Name
CNIC No/Passport No. CNIC No/Passport No.
Address Address
Notes:

l. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another member as his/her
proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her. A corporation being a member may appoint as its proxy any
of its official of any other person whether a member of the Company or otherwise.

2. An instrument of proxy and a Power of Attorney or other authorized (if any) under which it is signed, or notarized
copy of such Power of Attorney must be valid and deposited at the Share Registrar of the Company M/s. THK
Associates (Private) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street-2, D.H.A., Phase-VIl, Karachi not less than
48 hours before the time of the Meeting.

3. In case of proxy for an individual beneficial owner of CDC, attested copy of beneficial owner's National Identity
Card or Passport, Account and Participant's ID numbers must be deposited alongwith the form of proxy with
the Share Registrar. The proxy must produce his/her original identity card at the time of Meeting. In case of
proxy for corporate members, he/she should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

To: Broker's Name

The Registrar OR

M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Central Depository Company
Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial, (where shares are held in the
Street-2, D.H.A., Phase-VIl, Karachi Investor Account Services)

I | hereby authorize Siddigsons Tin Plate Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in

the below mentioned bank account.

i) Shareholder's Detail

Name of the shareholder

Folio No. /CDC Participants ID A/c. No.

CNIC No.*

Passport No, (in case of foreign shareholder)**

Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

(ii)  Shareholder's Bank Detail

Title of the Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank's Name

Branch Name and Address

2. It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct, that | will intimate the changes in the above

mentioned information to the above addresses as soon as these occur.

Signature of the Shareholder

Note: The shareholder who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the above-mentioned Dividend
Mandate Form after duly filled in to Share Registrar concerned. The Shareholders who hold shares in Central
Depository Company are requested to submit the above mentioned Dividend Mandate Form after duly filled

in to their Participants/Investor Account Services of the Central Depository Company Limited.

* Please attach attested photocopy of CNIC
** Please attach attested photocopy of the Passport
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